
           

REGULAR MEETING
OF THE CITY COUNCIL

August 10, 2021

ADDISON TREEHOUSE

14681 MIDWAY RD. SUITE 200, ADDISON, TX 75001
6:00 PM

 

Notice is hereby given that the Addison City Council will conduct its REGULARLY
SCHEDULED MEETING on Tuesday, August 10, 2021 at the Addison TreeHouse
with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating for members
of the public will be available using CDC recommended social distancing
measures. The Town will utilize telephone or videoconference public meetings to
facilitate public participation to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by avoiding
meetings that bring people into a group setting. Telephonic or videoconferencing
capabilities will be utilized to allow individuals to address the Council. Email
comments may also be submitted to: iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm the day
of the meeting. Members of the public are entitled to participate remotely via
Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant
ID: #. For more detailed instructions on how to participate in this meeting visit our
Agenda Page. The meeting will be live streamed on Addison's website
at:www.addisontexas.net.
           

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION



EXECUTIVE SESSION

Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or
employee, pertaining to: 
  

City Attorney

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, Consultation with an attorney to seek legal
advice regarding pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offer
regarding:
  

Town of Addison, Texas v. CP Greenhill, LLC, and BBVA USA, f/k/a
Compass Bank, Cause No. CC-20-01139-B, County Court at Law No. 2,
Dallas County, Texas. (Greenhill Towers)

 

Reconvene in to Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to
consider action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session.
 

WORK SESSION
 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Announcements and Acknowledgments Regarding Town and Council
Events and Activities

Discussion of Meetings / Events
 

Public Comment
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter,
including items on the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the
agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific
hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless
otherwise required by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council
Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior to the Public Comment
item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss
any item not listed on the agenda.  The Council may choose to place the item



on a future agenda.
 

Consent Agenda
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City
Council and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If
individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the
Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 

1. Consider Action on the Minutes from the June 17, 2021 Special Joint
Meeting of the City Council and Planning & Zoning Commission.   

 

2. Consider Action on the Minutes from the July 13, 2021 Regular
Meeting and Work Session.   

 

3. Consider Action on a Resolution Establishing the Town's Intention to
Reimburse Itself for Prior Lawful Expenditures of Funds Relating to
Constructing Various City Improvements (Authorized 2019 Bond
Projects such as Improvements to Parks Facilities and Repairs at
Existing Municipal Facilities) in the Amount of $8,095,000.

 

4. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Economic
Development Program Grant Agreement with Tyton Holdings and
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Agreement in an
Amount Not to Exceed $100,000.

 

5. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Agreement Between
the Town of Addison and Simon Roofing and Sheet Metal
Corporation for the Replacement of the Roof at 4308 Wiley Post
Road and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Agreement in
an Amount Not to Exceed $88,850. 

 

Regular Items
 

6. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an 
Ordinance Changing the Zoning on a 1.17 Acre Property Located at
4551 Beltway Drive, from Local Retail (LR) to Commercial-1 (C-1)
District. Case 1830-Z - 4551 Beltway Drive.   

 

7. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a



7. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a
Meritorious Exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances for
Bowlero, Located at 3805 Belt Line Road, in Order to Exceed the
Total Effective Area and the Maximum Allowable Logo Height for
Attached Signs. Case MR2021-007.

 

8. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the
Professional Consulting Agreement Between the Town of Addison
and BKD, LLP to Perform Audits for Fiscal Years 2021, 2022, and
2023 (with the Option to Extend the Agreement for Fiscal Years
2024 and 2025 for Additional Fees), and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed
$287,500.

 

9. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Authorizing
the Issuance of Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2021; Awarding the Sale Thereof; Levying a Tax, and
Providing for the Security and Payment of Said Bonds; Authorizing
the Execution and Delivery of a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement;
Approving the Official Statement; Enacting Other Provisions
Relating to the Subject; and Declaring an Effective Date.   

 

10. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Authorizing
the Issuance of Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2021; Awarding the Sale Thereof;
Levying a Tax, and Providing for the Security and Payment of Said
Bonds; Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a Paying
Agent/Registrar Agreement and an Escrow Agreement; Approving
the Official Statement; Enacting Other Provisions Relating to the
Subject; and Declaring an Effective Date.   

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed
on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with
the attorney for the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property); §551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel);
§551.076 (deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations).
Any decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session



Any decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session
following the conclusion of the Executive Session.  

 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN
ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

POSTED BY:     ________________________________
                           Irma G. Parker, City Secretary
DATE POSTED: Thursday, August 5, 2021
TIME POSTED:  1:30 pm
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  ______________________
REMOVED BY:  ________________________________
 



   
Council Meeting 1.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on the Minutes from the June 17, 2021 Special Joint Meeting
of the City Council and Planning & Zoning Commission.   

BACKGROUND:
The minutes for the June 17, 2021 Special Joint Meeting of the City Council and
Planning & Zoning Commission have been prepared for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - June 17, 2021 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 22 

 

D R A F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE 

ADDISON CITY COUNCIL 

AND 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

June 17, 2021 @ 6:30 PM 

Special Joint Meeting 

Addison TreeHouse 

14681 Midway Rd., Addison, TX 75001 

 
The Addison City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a Special Joint 

Meeting on Thursday, June 17, 2021, at the Addison TreeHouse with a quorum of the City Council 

and the Planning & Zoning Commission physically present. Limited seating for members of the 

public was available using CDC recommended social distancing measures. The meeting was live 

streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net. 
 

City Council Present: 

Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla; Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Paul 

Walden; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Lori Ward; Council Member Kathryn 

Wheeler; Council Member Marlin Willesen. 

 

Planning & Zoning Commission Present: 

Chair Eileen Resnick; Vice Chair Tom Souers; Commissioner Robert Catalani; Commissioner 

Nancy Craig; Commissioner Chris DeFrancisco; Commissioner Denise Fansler; Commissioner 

John Meleky 
 

Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Chow called the City Council to order and welcomed the Planning 

& Zoning Commission to this joint meeting. Chair Eileen Resnick called the Planning & Zoning 

Commission to order. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance:     Mayor Chow led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council Events and Activities 

Discussion of Events/Meetings 

http://www.addisontexas.net/


Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 22 

 

 
 

Public Comment: The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including items on 

the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be 

heard when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required 

by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior 

to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any item not 

listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda. 

 

City Secretary Parker advised that no citizens had requested to address the City Council or 

Planning & Zoning Commission via telephonic means. 
 

Regular Items 

 

1.     Present and Discuss the Development Code Review Process and Solicit Feedback on 

the Draft Unified Development Code Development Standards Addressing Flood 

Prevention, Grading and Drainage, Access and Circulation, and the Subdivision of 

Land. 
 

Ken Schmidt, Director of Development Services presented this item. He provided a review of 

what has been done on this Unified Development Code (UDC) project since it began in 2018. He 

introduced Matt Goebel and Gabby Hart with Clarion Associates who were present to review the 

second of four drafting Phases of the UDC project. 

 

Mr. Goebel provided a review of the Project Goals and the Scope and Timeline of the project. He 

noted that this is the first of three planned joint meetings with the City Council and Planning & 

Zoning Commission for this second drafting phase. He also advised there is a project website 

www.AddisonUDC.org and individuals may sign up for alerts regarding this project or view 

project materials. He advised that so far public interest has been low and options to improve that 

participation were discussed. 

 

Mr. Goebel provided a summary of the previous Phase 1 discussion that included a new 

consolidated Use Table, including some proposed new uses as well as eliminating some existing 

uses. He advised that some of the existing zoning districts for residential, mixed-use, and non- 

residential will be consolidated or adjusted. 

 

Council Member Braun inquired about House Bill 2439 which mandates that a “building product 

or material [that] is approved for use by a national model code published within the last three code 

cycles that applies to the construction, renovation, maintenance, or other alteration of the 

building.” 3000.002(a)(1). Attorney Brenda McDonald briefed the City Council and Planning & 

Zoning Commission on the House Bill. She advised that this matter will be discussed more in the 

future however noted that it may be an option to contractually agree on building materials with 

developers. 

 

Today’s discussion was regarding Article 4: Development Standards. Mr. Goebel presented a 

question to the City Council and Planning & Zoning Commission Members regarding 

redevelopment and whether projects should be categorized based on the scope of the 

http://www.addisonudc.org/


Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 22 

 

redevelopment activity. For example, adding a patio to a restaurant versus doing a major 

renovation could have different requirements. He noted the Advisory Committee voiced a concern 

that small business owners might not be able to reinvest in their business if the expense and more 

involved process is not feasible. Mr. Goebel added that these requirements should be calibrated 

to Addison’s needs. He presented a “tiered” or “scaled” approach that would accommodate a 

broad range of redevelopment needs. 

 

Mr. Goebel briefly reviewed the Flood Standards portion of the Code to share that those standards 

will largely stay the same and there will be a cross-reference to the Drainage Criteria Manual and 

other applicable Public Works and Engineering Department standards. 

 

Mr. Goebel advised that a new section, Access and Circulation, will include Street Connectivity, 

Driveways and Access, and Pedestrian Circulation. It was noted that these will need to coordinate 

with the Trails Master Plan and the Transportation Master Plan. The Pedestrian Circulation 

component will need to be balanced with landscaping and parking requirements. A question 

regarding crosswalks was raised. It was noted that they are addressed by the Transportation 

Criteria Manual, and crosswalk improvements will typically be carried out through Town projects, 

not private development projects. 

 

Feedback received from City Council and Planning & Zoning Commission Members included that 

since the pandemic more people are working from home, and many may continue to do so, 

impacting certain areas of the UDC. It was stated that restaurants that have an entertainment 

component may need different parking requirements. Shared office spaces, restaurant take-out 

business, and transportation services such as Uber or Lyft are all influencing parking lot needs. 

Attorney McDonald requested the consultant look at the allowable locations for sexually oriented 

businesses. The future need for electric charging stations for vehicles was briefly discussed. 

 

Mr. Goebel advised that the next meeting, scheduled to be held July 22, 2021, will include 

discussion on Parking & Loading, Site and Building Design, and Exterior Lighting. The August 

meeting will cover Landscaping, Buffering, & Fences, and Parkland Dedication and Park 

Development Fees. Prior to each of these meetings, the project team will meet with the Advisory 

Committee as well. Mr. Goebel advised that in the future there will be an on-line option for the 

Advisory Committee members, the Commission and City Council to provide input. 

 

It was noted that a draft of the UDC document will be available in the Spring of 2022 and adoption 

is planned for mid-year 2022. 

 

[See Attached Exhibit A: Addison UDC -Part 2] 
 

Adjourn Meeting 

 

Chair Resnick adjourned the Planning & Zoning Commission. Mayor Chow adjourned the City 

Council meeting. 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 22 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

City Council Planning & Zoning Commission 
 

 

Joe Chow, Mayor Eileen Resnik, Chair 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

Addison UDC -Part 2 

Meeting Presentation 

Special Joint Meeting City Council & Planning & Zoning 

Commission 
June 17, 2021 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 22 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 12 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 13 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 14 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 15 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 16 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 17 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 18 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 19 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 20 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 21 of 22 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 17, 2021 Joint City Council and 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 22 of 22 

 

 



   
Council Meeting 2.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on the Minutes from the July 13, 2021 Regular Meeting and
Work Session.   

BACKGROUND:
The minutes from the July 13, 2021 Regular Meeting and Work Session have
been prepared for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - July 13, 2021 



Town of Addison, Texas 

July 13, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 5 

 

D R A F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE 

ADDISON CITY COUNCIL 

July 13, 2021 

 

Executive Session, Work Session & Regular Meeting 

5:45 p.m. 

 

Addison TreeHouse 

14681 Midway Rd., Addison, TX 75001 

 
The Addison City Council conducted its Regular Council Meeting on Tuesday, July 13, 2021, at 

the Addison TreeHouse with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating for 

members of the public was available using CDC recommended social distancing measures. The 

Town utilized telephone and videoconferencing to facilitate participation in the meeting. Interested 

parties were able to make public comments and address the Council via emailed comments 

submitted to the City Secretary at iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm on the meeting day. 

Members of the public were also entitled to participate remotely via Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 

877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant ID: #. Detailed instructions on how to 

participate in this meeting were available on the Town’s website on the Agenda Page. The meeting 

was live streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net 
 

Present: Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla; Deputy Mayor Pro 

Tempore Paul Walden; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Lori Ward; 

Council Member Kathryn Wheeler; Council Member Marlin Willesen 
 

Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Chow called the meeting to order. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Chow led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to: Section 551. 071, Tex. 

Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its attorney pertaining to: 

 

• Bigelow Arizona TX-344, Limited Partnership D/B/A Suites of America and/or Budget 

Suites of America v. Town of Addison, Cause No. DC-19-09630, 191st Judicial District, 

Dallas County District Court 

mailto:iparker@addisontx.gov
http://www.addisontexas.net/


Town of Addison, Texas 

July 13, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5 

 

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, 

reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee, pertaining to:  
 

• City Attorney 

 

Mayor Chow closed the Open Session to convene the City Council into Closed Executive Session 

at 5:47 p.m. 

 

Reconvene into Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, 

the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matters 

discussed in Executive Session. 
 

Mayor Chow reconvened the City Council into Open Session at 7:40 p.m. 

 

No action was taken as a result of Executive Session regarding Bigelow Arizona TX-344, Limited 

Partnership D/B/A Suites of America and/or Budget Suites of America v. Town of Addison. 

 

MOTION: Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Walden moved to authorize the City Manager to 

conclude negotiations with the Council’s top-ranked firm identified in RFQ 21-084: City 

Attorney/Legal Services for the Council to continue interviews with qualified firms. Council 

Member Ward seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

WORK SESSION 

 
1. Present and Discuss Council Calendar for August, September, and October, 2021. 

 

City Secretary Parker advised that the proposed meeting calendars were included in the packet. 

Councilmembers advised they had reviewed the calendars. 

 

Mayor Chow inquired if the TML Conference will be in person. Ms. Parker responded that it will 

be in person and will be held in Houston. She will provide info as it becomes available. 

 

On a related note, during the announcements portion of the meeting, City Manager Pierson 

reminded Council that there will not be a second Council meeting in July in order to prepare for 

the budget work sessions. 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council Events and Activities 

• Proclamation: John H. Otstott 



Town of Addison, Texas 

July 13, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5 

 

Mayor Chow read a proclamation establishing today as John H. Otstott Day. The proclamation 

recognized Mr. Otstott as a volunteer gardener at the Addison Community Garden for the past 

several years.  Mayor Chow presented the proclamation to Mr. Otstott. 

 

Discussion of Events/Meetings 
 

Public Comment: The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including items on 

the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be 

heard when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required 

by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior 

to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any item not 

listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda. 

 

City Secretary Parker advised that no citizens had requested to address the City Council. 
 

Consent Agenda: All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will 

be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will 

be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately. 

 

2. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the June 16, 2021 Special Council 

Meeting. 
 

3. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the June 22, 2021 City Council Work 

Session and Regular Meeting. 
 

4. Consider Action on a Resolution Discontinuing the City Council Finance Committee. 
 

5. Consider Action on a Resolution Adopting the Town of Addison's Strategic Pillars 

and Milestones for Fiscal Year 2022. 
 

6. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Agreement Between the Town of 

Addison and Dunaway Associates, LLC. for Professional Engineering Services for 

Plat and Easement Digitization and Mapping; and, Authorizing the City Manager to 

Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $70,000. 
 

Mayor Chow asked if there were any requests to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for 

separate discussion. 

 

Council Member Willesen requested Item 4 be pulled. 

 

MOTION: Council Member Ward moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 2, 3, 5, and 6 as 

submitted. Council Member Willesen seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

******* Consent Item 4 ******* 



Town of Addison, Texas 

July 13, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5 

 

Council Member Willesen advised he pulled Item 4 to express his opinion. Having served on the 

Council Finance Committee for the last four years, he opined serving on this committee has been 

very helpful for him and the councilmembers who had served. He added that the consensus of 

the Council was to dissolve the Committee, but he does not feel comfortable having it approved 

on the Consent Agenda. Mayor Chow acknowledged that the City Council previously discussed 

and approved dissolving the Committee and then called for a motion. 

 

MOTION: Council Member Ward moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 4. Mayor Pro 

Tempore Quintanilla seconded the motion. Motion carried with a vote of 6-1. Council Member 

Willesen voted against the motion. 

 

Resolution No. R21-035: Discontinue City Council Finance Committee 

Resolution No. R21-036: Adopt Strategic Pillars and Milestones for Fiscal Year 2022 

Resolution No. R21-037: Agreement with Dunaway Associates, LLC for Easement Digitation 

and Mapping 
 

 
Regular Items 

 

7. Consider Action on a Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of an Airport 

Improvement Program Grant Offer from the Texas Department of Transportation 

(TxDOT) Aviation Division in the Estimated Amount of $8,060,300 for Design and 

Construction of Extensions of and Improvements to Taxiway Bravo with Associated 

Improvements Including a Vehicle Service Road; Designating TxDOT as the Town 

of Addison's Agent for Receiving and Disbursing Funds; Acknowledging that 

Addison will be Responsible for an Estimated Contribution of $806,030; and, 

Authorizing the Execution of Documents Relative to the Acceptance of the Grant. 
 

Joel Jenkinson, Airport Director, presented this item. He advised there are two parts to this grant. 

There will be a design phase which begins this year and a construction phase which will be next 

year. The design phase is $806,000 with a 10% match or $80,500. The construction phase will 

be next year with an estimated cost of $7,255,300. The agenda memo advised that this includes a 

10% match on taxiway extensions but a 50% match on the vehicle service road west of the taxiway 

which Staff will negotiate with TxDOT and get the maximum grant funding of 90%. 

 

Council Member Willesen stated this grant application was outstanding. He asked if staff had a 

feel for when Taxiway Bravo would be completed? Mr. Jenkinson stated he did not know as this 

decision is based on funding. The present three-year Aviation Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) 

does not include the Taxiway Bravo Project. This project could move up in the ACIP during the 

design phase when more project costs are determined. Once total estimated costs are included, 

TxDOT will be able to factor those into the ACIP and schedule funding. Mr. Jenkinson opined 

that this is a very strong project for competition for discretionary TxDOT funding. 

 
Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Walden asked what are the implications of airport development on 

the west side of the airport with the completion of Taxiway Bravo? Mr. Jenkinson reported that 



Town of Addison, Texas 

July 13, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5 

 

getting access to these 4.2 acres can’t come quickly enough. He recalled that in 1999 the Airport 

acquired the 4.2-acre tract of land through a land-swap with the North Texas Toll Authority 

(NTTA) to allow for the Addison Airport Toll Tunnel to be built in NTTA’s right-of-way. These 

4.2 acres have not been developed for aeronautical purpose because there was no access to a 

taxiway or runway. With the first phase of construction scheduled to start next year, the 4.2 acres 

would become open for aeronautical purposes, namely ground leases. There is a tremendous 

demand for hanger development which could increase airport revenues more than $120,000. 

 

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Walden asked if there was any other property that has not been 

developed due to access? Mr. Jenkinson stated getting Taxiway Bravo to the full length parallel 

the entire length of the runway is a great step forward. However, this extension may affect 

compliance with additional federal requirements, in particular Federal Aviation Authority (FAA) 

safety area(s) and runway protection zones standards. 

 

Council Member Ward requested clarification of what plan(s) required updating. Mr. Jenkinson 

responded to advise the 2016 Airport Master Plan is an FAA required document that must be 

updated every 10 years. When this review is made in the next couple of years, Staff will be able 

to determine if any major infrastructure projects are needed along with the projected cost of those 

improvements. 

 

Mayor Pro Tempore Quintanilla asked if the 4.2 acres were included in the 2016 Airport Master 

Plan? Mr. Jenkinson responded saying that the acres were included in that plan. 

 

MOTION: Council Member Willesen moved to approve. Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Walden 

seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Adjourn Meeting 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Chow adjourned the meeting. 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

 
 

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



   
Council Meeting 3.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health
Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial

Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Establishing the Town's Intention to
Reimburse Itself for Prior Lawful Expenditures of Funds Relating to
Constructing Various City Improvements (Authorized 2019 Bond Projects
such as Improvements to Parks Facilities and Repairs at Existing Municipal
Facilities) in the Amount of $8,095,000.

BACKGROUND:
On November 18, 2019, the Council passed a Resolution canvassing and
declaring the results of the November 5, 2019 Special Bond Election. 
Proposition C in this election passed with 825 votes ‘for’ and 389 votes ‘against’. 
Proposition D in this election passed with 755 votes ‘for’ and 457 votes ‘against’. 

Proposition C asked for authorization for the sale of $6,723,002 in general
obligation bonds for parks and recreation improvements and facilities. 

Proposition D asked for authorization for the sale of $7,395,000 in general
obligation bonds for improvements to existing municipal buildings, including roof
and HVAC replacements, as well as needed repairs to address American with
Disabilities Act (ADA) compliance.

On June 22, 2021, staff presented a plan to Council to issue $3,145,000 from
Proposition C and $4,950,000 from Proposition D with proceeds to be delivered
on September 14, 2021.  

This agenda item seeks passage of a Resolution authorizing the reimbursement
of up to $3,145,000 for parks and recreation improvements and facilities and
$4,950,000 for improvements to existing municipal buildings, including roof and
HVAC replacements, as well as needed repairs to address American with
Disabilities Act (ADA) compliance from future bond sales.  Several HVAC units
are anticipated to be replaced prior to the September 14, 2021 anticipated
delivery of funds.  Additionally, improvement projects at the Addison Athletic
Club and other facilities are anticipated to begin later this Summer, prior to the
September 14, 2021 anticipated delivery of funds.  This Resolution must be



passed within 60 days of the expenditure of the funds to be legally compliant. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Reimbursement for Propositions C and D 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. R Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. R21- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS RELATING TO ESTABLISHING THE TOWN’S INTENTION TO 
REIMBURSE ITSELF FOR THE PRIOR LAWFUL EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS 
RELATING TO CONSTRUCTING VARIOUS CITY IMPROVEMENTS FROM 
THE PROCEEDS OF TAX- EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS TO BE ISSUED BY THE 
TOWN FOR AUTHORIZED PURPOSES; AUTHORIZING OTHER MATTERS 
INCIDENT AND RELATED THERETO; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Texas authorized to finance its activities by issuing 
obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the Town will make, or has made not more than 60 days prior to the date 
hereof, payments with respect to the design, engineering, acquisition, construction, reconstruction 
or renovation of the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto (collectively, the “Financed 
Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to reimburse itself for the costs associated with the 
Financed Project from the proceeds of obligations to be issued subsequent to the date hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Town reasonably expects to issue obligations to reimburse itself for the 
costs associated with the Financed Project;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS THAT: 

SECTION 1. The Town reasonably expects to reimburse itself for costs that have been or 
will be paid subsequent to the date that is 60 days prior to the date hereof and that are to be paid in 
connection with the acquisition, construction, reconstruction or renovation of the Financed Project 
from the proceeds of obligations to be issued subsequent to the date hereof. 

SECTION 2. The Town reasonably expects that the maximum principal amount of 
obligations issued to reimburse the Town for the costs associated with the Financed Project will be 
$8,095,000. 

 SECTION 3. Unless otherwise advised by bond counsel, any reimbursement allocation 
will be made not later than 18 months after the later of (1) the date the original expenditure is 
paid or (2) the date on which the Financed Project to which the expenditure relates is placed in 
service or abandoned, but in no event more than three years after the original expenditure is paid.

SECTION 4. The Town intends to otherwise comply, in addition to those matters 
addressed within this Resolution, with all the requirements contained in the federal regulations. 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. R Page 2 of 3 

SECTION 5. This Resolution may be relied upon by the appropriate officials at the Office 
of the Attorney General for the State of Texas and establishes compliance by the Issuer with the 
requirements of Texas law and the Regulations. 

SECTION 6. With respect to the proceeds of the Obligations allocated to reimburse the 
Issuer for prior expenditures, the Town shall not employ an abusive device under Treasury 
Regulation Section 1.148-10, including using within one year of the reimbursement allocation, 
the funds corresponding to the proceeds of the Obligations in a manner that results in the creation 
of “replacement proceeds”, as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1, of the Obligations 
or another issue of tax-exempt obligations. 

SECTION 7. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas. 

SECTION 8. All ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or 
inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
resolved herein. 

SECTION 9. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Texas and the United States of America 

SECTION 10. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 

SECTION 11. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, 
and it is so resolved. 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this the 10th day of AUGUST 2021. 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

Joe Chow, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. R Page 3 of 3 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

Purpose/Project Amount 

Acquiring, developing, renovating and improving parks, park facilities, 
recreation facilities, including the Addison Athletic Club, and open spaces 
for park and recreation purposes in and for the Town, including the 
acquisition of land therefor. 

$3,145,000 

Renovating, repairing, improving, and equipping existing Town service, 
public safety, conference and administrative facilities, including repair, 
replacement, and improvement of roofs, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, air 
conditioning, heating and ventilation equipment and systems, façade 
improvements, and improvements required by the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and other applicable laws. 

$4,950,000 



   
Council Meeting 4.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: Economic Development
Pillars: Entrepreneurship & Business Hub
Milestones: Economic development focus on attracting and retaining

entrepreneurship and targeted industry sectors

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Economic Development
Program Grant Agreement with Tyton Holdings and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $100,000.

BACKGROUND:
On April 27, 2021, City Council authorized the City Manager to negotiate an
incentive grant agreement with Tyton Holdings for an amount of $100,000 for the
company's headquarter relocation to Addison from Littleton, Colorado.  

As part of the agreement, Tyton purchased a 44,000 square foot office building
at 16051 Addison Road better known as the Addison Airport Office Center.  The
company will initially occupy 25,000 SF for themselves and their six business
affiliations.  The company will make an estimated $5.9 million investment in the
purchase, tenant improvements, and other office space expenditures.  The
company will initially employ 40 full time positions with an average annual wage
of at least $120,000.

The grant provided by the Town is performance based and will be paid in three
installments pending milestones related to space occupancy, capital investment,
number of jobs created, and average wages that must be met by the company as
highlighted in the attached agreement.  The motion approved on April 27, 2021
approved the incentive, but did not authorize the City Manager to execute the
agreement.  Authorization is now being requested in the attached resolution to
have the City Manager execute the agreement.  The funds for the grant have
been encumbered in the Economic Development Fund, and the attached
agreement has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Tyton Holdings 



Resolution - Tyton Holdings 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 1 of 13 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
APPROVING AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM GRANT AGREEMENT 
WITH TYTON HOLDINGS; FINDING THAT SUCH AGREEMENT AND GRANT 
CONSTITUTES A PROGRAM TO MAKE GRANTS AND LOANS OF PUBLIC 
MONEY PURSUANT TO SECTION 380.001 OF THE TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
CODE TO PROMOTE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TO STIMULATE 
BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY WITHIN THE TOWN; AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule city operating under and 

pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and its Home Rule Charter; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the Town of Addison is authorized and empowered pursuant 
to Section 380.001 of the Texas Local Government Code to establish and provide for the administration 
of one or more programs, including programs for making loans and grants of public money and 
providing personnel and services of the City, to promote state or local economic development and to 
stimulate business and commercial activity in the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, Addison has established a program under and pursuant to Section 380.001 of the 
Texas Local Government Code for making a grant of public money, and such program is established 
to promote economic development within the City and to stimulate business and commercial activity 
in the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and hereby determines that making an economic 
development grant to the Company in accordance with this Agreement will further the objectives of 
the City, will benefit the City and the City’s inhabitants, and will promote local economic development 
and stimulate business and commercial activity in the City.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF ADDISON, TEXAS:  
 

SECTION 1. The above and foregoing premises are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein and made a part hereof for all purposes.  
 

SECTION 2. The Economic Development Program Grant Agreement between the Town of 
Addison and Tyton Holdings, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, is hereby 
approved. The City Manager is authorized and empowered to execute the said Agreement on behalf of 
the City and to take all steps necessary to carry out the terms thereof.  
 

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.  
 
 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this the 10th day of AUGUST 2021. 
 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 2 of 13 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
 
             

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Irma Parker, City Secretary City Attorney 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 3 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 4 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 5 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 6 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 7 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 8 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 9 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 10 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 11 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 12 of 13 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 13 of 13 
 

 



   
Council Meeting 5.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: Airport
Pillars: Excellence in Asset Management

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Agreement Between the
Town of Addison and Simon Roofing and Sheet Metal Corporation for the
Replacement of the Roof at 4308 Wiley Post Road and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $88,850. 

BACKGROUND:
This items seeks approval of a Resolution to enter into an agreement with Simon
Roofing and Sheet Metal for the replacement of the roof at 4308 Wiley Post
Road.  The majority of this roof is more than 40 years old and has been spot
repaired on numerous occasions to stop leaks.  It is time for a full roof
replacement.  The scope of work includes the removal and replacement of
roofing material and insulation down to the metal structural deck.  The rooftop
HVAC system will be temporarily removed to facilitate the roof reconstruction. 
The HVAC curb and flashing will also be replaced.  The new roof will be of an
energy efficient material that will help reflect heat and keep the roof areas cooler
thus reducing energy consumption. 
 
The purchase is being made on a contract through The Interlocal Purchasing
System (TIPS), an agency that bids out services and products for its members to
provide the leverage to achieve better pricing on products, equipment, and
services.
 
An Owner's Contingency of $4,442.50 (5%) has been included in the total project
budget ($93,292.50).  This project is funded from the $255,000 authorized in the
Airport Fund for roof repairs.  

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - 4308 Wiley Post Roof Agreement 
4308 Wiley Post Roof Image 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 1 of 16 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ADDISON 
AND SIMON ROOFING AND SHEET METAL CORPORATION FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT OF THE ROOF AT 4308 WILEY POST ROAD IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $88,850.00, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. The Agreement between the Town of Addison and Simon Roofing and 
Sheet Metal Corporation for the roof replacement at 4308 Wiley Post Road in an amount not 
to exceed $88,850.00, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby 
approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement. 

 
SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 
 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, 
on this the 10th day of AUGUST 2021. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
 
             

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Irma Parker, City Secretary City Attorney



EXHIBIT A 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 3 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 4 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 5 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 6 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 7 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 8 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 9 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 10 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 11 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 12 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 13 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 14 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 15 of 16 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 16 of 16 

 





   
Council Meeting 6.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance
Changing the Zoning on a 1.17 Acre Property Located at 4551 Beltway
Drive, from Local Retail (LR) to Commercial-1 (C-1) District. Case 1830-Z -
4551 Beltway Drive.   

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:

The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on
July 20, 2021, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance changing the
zoning on a 1.17 acre property located at 4551 Beltway Drive, from Local Retail
(LR) to Commercial-1 (C-1) District.

Voting Aye:  Catalani, Craig, DeFrancisco, Fansler, Meleky, Resnik, Souers.
Voting Nay:  none.
Absent:        none.

SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: none.

Please refer to the attached staff report for additional information on this case.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1830-Z Ordinance 
1830-Z Presentation 
1830-Z Staff Report 
1830-Z Zoning Exhibit 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE BY REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 

095-021 AND REZONING A 1.17 ACRE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4551 

BELTWAY DRIVE, FROM LOCAL RETAIL (LR) TO THE COMMERCIAL-1 (C-

1) DISTRICT; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED TWO THOUSAND 

AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE AND A SEPARATE 

OFFENSE SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED EACH DAY DURING OR ON 

WHICH A VIOLATION OCCURS OR CONTINUES; PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS, 

NO SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 4551 Beltway Drive, is zoned LR, Local Retail; and 

 

 WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on July 20, 2021 the Planning & Zoning 

Commission considered and made recommendations on a request to rezone to the Commercial-1 

(C-1) district (Case No.1830-Z); and 

 

 WHEREAS, this change of zoning is in accordance with the adopted Comprehensive Plan 

of the Town of Addison, as amended; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at a public hearing, and other relevant 

information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 

amendment promotes the general welfare and safety of this community. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 SECTION 1.  The recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance No. 095-021, granting a Special Use Permit for a restaurant and 

the sale of alcoholic beverages for on premises consumption, is hereby repealed in its entirety.     

 

 SECTION 3.  The Zoning Ordinance and official zoning map shall be amended so as to 

rezone a 1.17 acre property located at 4551 Beltway Drive from Local Retail (LR) to Commercial-

1 (C-1), said property being described in the legal description on Exhibit A attached hereto.  

 

 SECTION 4.  Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of 

this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 

in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 

Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 

 

 SECTION 5.  It is the intention of the City Council that this ordinance be considered in its 

entirety, as one ordinance, and should any portion of this ordinance be held to be void or 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 2 of 5 

unconstitutional, then said ordinance shall be void in its entirety, and the City Council would not 

have adopted said ordinance if any part or portion of said ordinance should be held to be 

unconstitutional or void. 

 

 SECTION 6.  All ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the 

provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 

  DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 10TH day of AUGUST 2021. 
 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             
Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary City Attorney



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 3 of 5 

Being a part of Tract III, Beltway Office Park, an addition to the City of Addison, Dallas County, 

Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded in Volume 77086, Page 26, Map Records, Dallas 

County, Texas, and being the same tract of land described in deed to Wannee Whitis and Husband 

Kittichai Vichyastit, recorded in Volume 2000040, Page 4225, Deed Records, Dallas County, 

Texas, and being more particularly described as follows; 

 

BEGINNING at a 3/8" iron rod found at the intersection of the West line of Beltway Drive, a 

variable width right-of-way, with the North line of Beltway Drive, a 60' right-of-way;  

 

Thence West, along said North line, a distance of 169.05' to a 1/2" iron rod found at the Southeast 

corner of Lot 1, Hampton Inn Hotel, an addition to the City of Addison, according to the plat 

thereof recorded in Volume 85090, Page 4767, Map Records, Dallas County, Texas;  

 

Thence North 00°03'00" West, a distance of 301.44' to a 1/2" iron rod found at the Northeast corner 

of said Lot 1, and being the Southeast corner of Lot 2-R, 4500 Belt Line Addition, an addition to 

the City of Addison, Dallas County, Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded in Instrument 

No. 20190032993, Official Public Records, Dallas County, Texas, and being the Southwest corner 

of Addison Market, an addition to the City of Addison, Dallas County, Texas, according to the plat 

thereof recorded in Volume 83208, Page 2077, Map Records, Dallas County, Texas;  

 

Thence North 89°58'36" East, a distance of 169.05' to a 1/2" iron rod found in said West line of 

Beltway Drive, at the Southeast corner of said Addison Market;  

 

Thence South 00°03'00" East, along said West line a distance of 301.51' to the PLACE OF 

BEGINNING and containing 50,964 square feet or 1.170 acres of land.  



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 4 of 5 

 
 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 5 of 5 

 



4551 Beltway Drive –
Request to Rezone from 
Local Retail (LR) to 
Commercial-1 (C-1)
(1830-Z)

1



Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive

LOCATION:
4551 Beltway Drive.

REQUEST:
Approval of a request to rezone a 1.17-acre property 
located at 4551 Beltway Drive, from Local Retail (LR) 
to Commercial-1 (C-1) District.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Discuss, consider, and take action on the 
appropriateness of the proposed C-1 zoning 
designation for the 1.17-acre subject property.

2



PROJECT HISTORY:
1995 – SUP was approved for restaurant use/alcohol 
sales; Property also had previous CO approval for 
office use

2006/07 – All improvements on the site were 
demolished

Present – Lot is currently vacant, and a speculative 
medical office building concept plan was submitted 
for concurrent review

Concept Plan was conditionally approved by P & Z, 
pending City Council action on this rezoning request

3

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



Compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan:
- Attributes of Success Future Land Use Analysis is silent on 

this property – Analysis for Sector 2 West focused on the 
Inwood Corridor and the Belt Line frontage

- Proposed rezoning to Commercial-1 would improve the 
viability of this property for the following Attributes of 
Success:

- Competitive

- Functional

- This site lacks the visibility, access, and amenities to best 
support conventional retail/restaurant use

- Allowing a broader mix of compatible nonresidential uses –
such as medical office – enhances these attributes

4

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



Compatibility with the Master Transportation Plan:
- Beltway Drive is designated as a Commercial Collector 

Street in the Master Transportation Plan

- Sufficient capacity is provided by this street designation 
for this zoning designation

- Right-of-Way needs to be evaluated with civil site design 
and replat

5

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



Compatibility with the Parks, Recreation, and 
Open Space Master Plan:

- No parks envisioned for the subject property

- Local off-street trail is depicted for Beltway Drive

6

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



Compatibility with the Trail Master Plan:
- Bike Boulevard envisioned for Beltway Drive

- Wide sidewalk with buffer provided with 
proposed concept plan

7

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



Compatibility with Adjacent Land Uses:
- Surrounded by office, office/showroom, hotel, 

service, and restaurant uses

- Uses permitted in the C-1 zoning district are 
compatible with the existing land use pattern

8

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



Compatibility with Adjacent Zoning:
- Surrounded by Local Retail, Commercial-1, and 

PD zoning

- Uses permitted in the C-1 zoning district are 
compatible with the surrounding zoning

9

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



Conditionally Approved Concept Plan:

10

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



PUBLIC NOTICE:
Notice of public hearing was provided to 
property owners within 200 feet of the subject 
property in accordance with Town and State law.

NOTICE RECIPIENTS: 9.

FOR: None.
AGAINST: None.
NEUTRAL: None.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION ACTION
Approval: 7 – 0

11

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the request and the 
repeal of SUP Ordinance 095-021.

• The Commercial-1 district is compatible and complimentary to the 
surrounding land use pattern and zoning framework

• Request complies with all Town policies and would be supported by 
existing and planned infrastructure improvements in this area.

12

Case 1830-Z 4551 Beltway Drive



1830-Z 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1830-Z/4551 Beltway Drive. Public hearing, discussion, and 

take action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance changing the zoning on a 1.17 

acre property located at 4551 Beltway Drive, from Local Retail (LR) to Commercial-1 (C-

1) District.  

LOCATION MAP 

 



 

 
 

 
 

July 15, 2021 
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
RE: 1830-Z/4551 Beltway Drive 
 
LOCATION:      4551 Beltway Drive 
 
REQUEST: Approval of a request to rezone a 1.17 acre 

property located at 4551 Beltway Drive, from 
Local Retail (LR) to Commercial-1 (C-1) 
District. 

 
APPLICANT:  Rob Baldwin, Baldwin Associates 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Background: This request to rezone from the Local Retail (LR) to Commercial-1 (C-1) district has 
been submitted for the purpose of permitting medical office use on 1.17 acres comprising part of 
Tract III of the Beltway Office Park Addition, generally located at the northwest corner of Beltway 
Drive, 350 feet south of Belt Line Road. 
 
The applicant, Rob Baldwin of Baldwin Associates, is representing a brokerage and development 
team that wishes to develop a speculative medical office building on this property. Concurrent to 
this request, the applicant has requested Commission review and approval of a concept plan for 
medical office use that demonstrates compliance with the requested C-1 zoning district and all 
other Town development standards. 
 
The current use of this lot is vacant; however, office use previously existed on this tract and in 
1995, an SUP was approved for a restaurant. Buildings and surface parking lots on this property 
were demolished in 2007. 
 
Compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan: The 2013 Comprehensive Plan assessed 
future land use needs through a Town-wide “Attributes of Success” analysis, a qualitative 
assessment of the presence of key traits that are found to be shared by successful communities. 
This assessment was carried out across the Town’s six geographical sectors, with the subject 
property being located in Sector 2 West. Given that this site is vacant, the Comprehensive Plan 
did not address this property, as the “Attributes of Success Analysis” focused on mature, 
developed properties experiencing varied degrees of success and decline. 
 
With this proposed rezoning, The Commercial-1 District would enhance the evaluation of this 
property through the “Attributes of Success” perspective. Specifically, the Commercial-1 district 
would allow this property to be more “competitive” and “functional” for new investment, as retail 
and restaurant use now requires better visibility, access, and amenities than what this site 
presents. Uses such as medical office would be compatible with the surrounding development 
pattern and would be more likely to be economically viable at this location. 



2 
 

 

 
 
Compatibility with other Town Policies: 
 

• Master Transportation Plan: Beltway Drive is designated as a commercial collector street 
in the Town’s Master Transportation Plan. This street type presents sufficient capacity to 
support traffic demand generated by uses permitted by the Commercial-1 district. Any 
needed right-of-way for Beltway Drive at this location would be evaluated during the replat 
application and civil engineering design review process. 
 

• Parks,  Recreation, and Open Space Master Plan: With the character of this segment of 
the Beltway Drive corridor being heavily commercial, this plan focused primarily on 
pedestrian connectivity through this area. Development of this site would enhance 
pedestrian connectivity though the construction of enhanced sidewalk facilities.  

 

• Trail Master Plan: The trail master plan requires a wide sidewalk with buffer and calls for 
this segment of Beltway Drive to serve as a bike boulevard. Development of this site will 
implement the envisioned sidewalk concept and will not serve as a hindrance to the bike 
boulevard concept. 

 
Compatibility with Adjacent Uses: This site is largely surrounded by uses that are already 
permitted in the Commercial-1 district, either by right or by SUP. To the north, the site is bordered 
by a surface parking lot, with a restaurant (Cantina Laredo) backing to it, that is zoned Local Retail 
with an SUP for restaurant use. To the east, there are flex office/warehouse, Commercial-1 zoned 
properties. To the south, there are Local Retail zoned service and retail uses. To the west, there 
is a limited-service hotel that is zoned Planned Development. The less intensive commercial uses 
of the Commercial-1 district are compatible with this existing development pattern and the 
surrounding zoning designations. 
 
Public Service Demand: The proposed Commercial-1 zoning designation would better position 
this site to attract less intensive commercial uses which are likely to have a lower impact on public 
services than restaurant, retail, or hospitality uses. There is sufficient existing and planned 
infrastructure capacity to accommodate the traffic and utility demand presented by this rezoning 
request and anticipated development of this property. 
 
Public Notice: The Town provided notice to property owners within two hundred feet of the subject 
property in accordance with Town and State requirements. As of the posting of this agenda, no 
feedback has been received on this application.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
The Commercial-1 district is compatible and complimentary to the surrounding land use pattern 
and zoning framework in this segment of the Beltway Drive corridor. This proposed rezoning 
request complies with all Town policies and would be supported by existing and planned 
infrastructure improvements in this area. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the request. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1830-Z/4551 Beltway Drive 
 
July 20, 2021 
 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on July 20, 2021, 
voted to recommend approval of an ordinance changing the zoning on a 1.17 acre property 
located at 4551 Beltway Drive, from Local Retail (LR) to Commercial-1 (C-1) District. 
 
Voting Aye:  Catalani, Craig, DeFrancisco, Fansler, Meleky, Resnik, Souers 
Voting Nay:  none 
Absent:        none 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
For:    none 
On: none 
Against:  none 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Being a part of Tract III, Beltway Office Park, an addition to the City of Addison, Dallas County, Texas, 

according to the plat thereof recorded in Volume 77086, Page 26, Map Records, Dallas County, Texas, and 

being the same tract of land described in deed to Wannee Whitis and Husband Kittichai Vichyastit, 

recorded in Volume 2000040, Page 4225, Deed Records, Dallas County, Texas, and being more particularly 

described as follows;  

BEGINNING at a 3/8" iron rod found at the intersection of the West line of Beltway Drive, a variable width 

right-of-way, with the North line of Beltway Drive, a 60' right-of-way;  

Thence West, along said North line, a distance of 169.05' to a 1/2" iron rod found at the Southeast corner 

of Lot 1, Hampton Inn Hotel, an addition to the City of Addison, according to the plat thereof recorded in 

Volume 85090, Page 4767, Map Records, Dallas County, Texas;  

Thence North 00°03'00" West, a distance of 301.44' to a 1/2" iron rod found at the Northeast corner of 

said Lot 1, and being the Southeast corner of Lot 2-R, 4500 Belt Line Addition, an addition to the City of 

Addison, Dallas County, Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded in Instrument No. 20190032993, 

Official Public Records, Dallas County, Texas, and being the Southwest corner of Addison Market, an 

addition to the City of Addison, Dallas County, Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded in Volume 

83208, Page 2077, Map Records, Dallas County, Texas;  

Thence North 89°58'36" East, a distance of 169.05' to a 1/2" iron rod found in said West line of Beltway 

Drive, at the Southeast corner of said Addison Market;  

Thence South 00°03'00" East, along said West line a distance of 301.51' to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and 

containing 50,964 square feet or 1.170 acres of land. 





   
Council Meeting 7.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a
Meritorious Exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances for
Bowlero, Located at 3805 Belt Line Road, in Order to Exceed the Total
Effective Area and the Maximum Allowable Logo Height for Attached
Signs. Case MR2021-007.

BACKGROUND:
A bowling center has existed at 3805 Belt Line Road since the late 1990s. The
current operator of this facility is Bowlero Corporation, which operates nearly 300
centers, making it the largest ten-pin bowling center operator in the world. In
2018, Bowlero rebranded from Bowlmor AMF, which is reflected in the existing
“Bowlmor Lanes” signage at Bowlero’s Addison bowling center. In order to
accurately reflect this rebranding, Bowlero recently submitted several sign permit
applications to update existing attached and detached signage on the premises,
and to add an additional attached sign reflective of the new brand.
 
In reviewing Bowlero’s sign permit applications, staff found that the proposed
signage did not comply with the Town’s sign code due to the number and
cumulative size of the attached signs that were proposed, as well as the size of
the lettering and logos included in the attached sign design. After examining the
impacts of complying with the Town’s sign code, Bowlero elected to apply for a
Meritorious Exception to the sign code. Specific exceptions addressed by
Bowlero’s request include:
  

Exceeding the number of permitted attached signs on the southern, Belt Line
Road facing façade, by providing three signs instead of a single tenant sign.
This proposed condition reflects one additional sign in excess of what
currently exists on this facade.

Exceeding the 100 square feet maximum effective sign area for the southern
façade by 195 square feet. The Town’s sign ordinance defines effective area
as the area enclosed by drawing a rectangle of horizontal and vertical lines
which fully contain all extremities of the sign drawn to scale.

For two proposed attached signs that include the Bowlero brand name,
exceeding the  37.5 inch maximum letter and logo height by 56 inches for
the logo and 13.5 inches for lettering.



For one proposed attached sign that depicts the Bowlero brand logo,
exceeding the  41.25 inch maximum logo height by 64.75 inches.

The applicant is pursuing a Meritorious Exception to the sign ordinance in
accordance with the below code provision:
  

Town of Addison Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62 (Signs)
Section 62-33. – Meritorious exceptions.

(d)(3) The council may consider appeals on the basis that such
regulations and/or standards will, by reason of exceptional
circumstances or surroundings, constitute a practical difficulty or
unnecessary hardship  or on the basis that the proposed
improvement although falling under the definition of a "sign,"
constitutes art that makes a positive contribution to the visual
environment.

  
For this proposal, staff believes the hardship criteria of the Meritorious Exception
requirements is met due to the limited visibility of this facility from Belt Line Road.
This facility is addressed off of Belt Line Road and maintains a detached sign on
a small strip of land at the northeast corner of Belt Line Road and Business
Avenue. While this building is over 500 feet from the Belt Line frontage, the size
of the attached sign lettering and logos is regulated by the distance between the
proposed signs and the nearest public streets. In this case, the two Bowlero
lettered signs are just under 250 feet from two adjacent north/south secondary
streets, Business Avenue and Commercial Drive, while the Bowlero logo sign is
just over 250 feet from those roadways. With this large setback from Belt line
Road, the proposed attached signs serve a much larger role in directing potential
customers into the site.
 
If this proposal was required to comply with the current sign code, the proposed
Bowlero signage would be much smaller than the Bowlmor Lanes signage that
currently exists on site. While this proposal presents one additional attached
sign through the provision of the logo sign, the change in effective sign area from
existing to proposed conditions is minimal.
 
The bowling industry continues to be strongly impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic.  This proposed signage will help Bowlero direct traffic to their business
with minimal aesthetic changes from current conditions.
 
Staff recommends approval of this Meritorious Exception request.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.



Attachments
MR2021-007 Ordinance 
MR2021-007 Presentation 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 1 of 8 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, GRANTING A 

MERITORIOUS EXCEPTION TO CHAPTER 62 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES FOR BOWLERO, LOCATED AT 3805 BELT LINE ROAD, TO 

ALLOW MULTIPLE ATTACHED SIGNS ON THE FRONT FAÇADE, AND TO 

EXCEED THE TOTAL EFFECTIVE AREA AND THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 

LETTER AND LOGO HEIGHT FOR ATTACHED SIGNS; PROVIDING A 

PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($500.00) 

FOR EACH OFFENSE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL BE DEEMED 

COMMITTED EACH DAY DURING OR ON WHICH A VIOLATION OCCURS OR 

CONTINUES; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances regulates signage in the Town of 

Addison; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 62-33 permits the City Council to approve exceptions to the 

provisions of Chapter 62 in cases that have obvious merit in not only being appropriate to the 

particular site or location, but also in making a positive contribution to the visual environment; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the grant of the meritorious exception 

contained herein is in the best interest of the public and promotes the visual environment of the 

Town. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 SECTION 1.  The recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 SECTION 2.  A meritorious exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby 

granted to allow multiple attached signs on the front façade and to authorize signage that exceeds 

the total effective area and the maximum allowable letter and logo height for attached signs as 

depicted in Exhibit A, for Bowlero, located at 3805 Belt Line Road. No other additional signage 

is permitted unless it complies with Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances.     

 

 SECTION 3.  Any person, firm, corporation, or other business entity violating any of the 

provisions or terms of this Ordinance shall, in accordance with Section 62-35 of the Town of 

Addison Code of Ordinance (Violations), be fined, upon conviction, in an amount of not more than 

Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($500.00), and a separate offense shall be deemed committed 

each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues. 

 

 SECTION 4.  This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 2 of 8 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, on this the 

10TH day of AUGUST 2021. 
 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             
Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary City Attorney



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 3 of 8 

  



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 4 of 8 

 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 5 of 8 

 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 6 of 8 

 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 7 of 8 

 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Ordinance No.           Page 8 of 8 

 

102.7 SF. 



Bowlero 
Meritorious Exception
(MR2021-007)

1



Case MR2021-007 Bowlero

LOCATION:
3805 Belt Line Road.

REQUEST:
Approval of a Meritorious Exception for attached 
signs for Bowlero.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Discuss, consider, and take action on the 
appropriateness of the proposed sign code 
meritorious exception request.

2



3

Attached 
Sign Locations

Case MR2021-007 Bowlero



SIGN CODE COMPLIANCE ISSUES:

• Number of Signs for Each Façade
• One attached sign is permitted for each 

tenant for each façade

• Maximum Letter and Logo Height
• Two signs with Bowlero Text and Symbol -

Maximum permitted letter/logo height is 
37.5 inches

• One sign with Bowlero Logo - Maximum 
permitted letter/logo height is 41.25 inches

• Sign Effective Area
• Maximum permitted sign effective area is 

100 square feet

4

Case MR2021-007 Bowlero



5

Number of Signs 
and 

Sign Effective Area 

Case MR2021-007 Bowlero

102.7 SF.

Has two more signs than what is 

permitted and exceeds the maximum 

sign effective area by 195 square feet. 



6

Letter / 
Logo Height

Case MR2021-007 Bowlero

Exceeds 37.5-inch max height for logos 

by 56 inches and letters by 13.5 inches. 

Exceeds 41.25-inch max height 

for logos by 64.75 inches. 



7

Case MR2021-007 US Bowlero

Existing Condition Proposed Condition



8

Case MR2021-007 US Bowlero

Compliant Sign



MERITORIOUS EXCEPTION CRITERIA:

• The council may consider appeals on the basis that such 
regulations and/or standards will, by reason of 
exceptional circumstances or surroundings, constitute a 
practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship or on the 
basis that the proposed improvement although falling 
under the definition of a "sign," constitutes art that 
makes a positive contribution to the visual environment.

Proposal meets hardship criteria

• Application of the code would result in much less visible 
signage than what currently exists on the site

• Being setback over 500 feet from Belt Line Road elevates 
the role of attached and detached signage in directing 
potential customers to the site

9

Case MR2021-007 Bowlero



RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the request.

10

Case MR2021-007 Bowlero



   
Council Meeting 8.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health
Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial

Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the
Professional Consulting Agreement Between the Town of Addison and
BKD, LLP to Perform Audits for Fiscal Years 2021, 2022, and 2023 (with the
Option to Extend the Agreement for Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 for
Additional Fees), and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the
Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $287,500.

BACKGROUND:
As part of the Town’s Charter requirement and financial best practices, the Town
engages an independent audit firm to conduct an annual financial audit.  This
year, the Town prepared a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for external audit
services.  Six firms responded to the RFQ and two finalists were selected and
interviewed by a review committee.  The committee consisted of the Chief
Financial Officer and Controller, both of whom are Certified Public Accountants. 
The committee unanimously selected the firm of BKD, LLP as the most qualified
provider of external audit services for the Town.  BKD, LLP has been the Town's
external audit firm since 2016.

BKD, LLP is a national CPA and advisory firm that offers clients a variety of
services in accounting, audit and assurance, tax, risk management, technology,
corporate finance, forensic and valuation services and wealth management. 
Firm-wide, they serve approximately 240 governmental entities in Texas, 25 of
which are municipalities.  The local office, which will service this audit, is located
in Addison at 14241 Dallas Parkway, Suite 1100, Dallas, TX 75254-2961.

Attached is a professional services agreement with BKD for a period of three
years (FY2021-2023) with two one-year extension options (FY2024 & FY2025). 
Exhibit A to the agreement is BKD, LLP's technical proposal dated May 25,
2021.  Exhibit B to the agreement is the Consultant's Cost Proposal for Fiscal
Years 2021, 2022, and 2023.  Exhibit C to the agreement outlines the terms and
conditions contained in the Town's Request for Proposal.    Exhibit D to the
agreement is the Consultant's Engagement Letter dated July 7, 2021.



The Audit Engagement fee for the external Financial Audit for the period ending
September 30, 2021 is $86,000 and the Single Audit Fee is $7,000 for a total fee
of $93,000. The Audit Engagement fee for the external Financial Audit for the
period ending September 30, 2022 is $88,500 and the Single Audit Fee is
$7,250 for a total fee of $95,750.  The Audit Engagement fee for the external
Financial Audit for the period ending September 30, 2023 is $91,250 and the
Single Audit Fee is $7,500 for a total fee of $98,750.  For the most recently
completed audit for the period ended September 30, 2020 the Audit Engagement
fee was $100,000 and the Single Audit Fee was $7,000 for a total fee of
$107,000.  

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.  

Attachments
Resolution - External Financial Audit 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 1 of 77 

RESOLUTION NO.    

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
APPROVING THE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE TOWN OF ADDISON AND BKD, LLP TO PERFORM AUDITS FOR FY 2021, 
FY 2022, AND FY 2023 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $287,500.00 AND THE 
OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE AGREEMENT FOR FY 2024 AND FY 
2025, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. The Professional Consulting Agreement between the Town of Addison 
and BKD, LLP for auditor services for FY 2021, FY 2022 and FY 2023 in an amount not to 
exceed $287,500.00, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby 
approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement. 

 
SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 
 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this the10th day of AUGUST 2021. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
 
             

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Irma Parker, City Secretary City Attorney 



EXHIBIT A 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 3 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 4 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 5 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 6 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 7 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 8 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 9 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 10 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 11 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 12 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 13 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 14 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 15 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 16 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 17 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 18 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 19 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 20 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 21 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 22 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 23 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 24 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 25 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 26 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 27 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 28 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 29 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 30 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 31 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 32 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 33 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 34 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 35 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 36 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 37 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 38 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 39 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 40 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 41 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 42 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 43 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 44 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 45 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 46 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 47 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 48 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 49 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 50 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 51 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 52 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 53 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 54 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 55 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 56 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 57 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 58 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 59 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 60 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 61 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 62 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 63 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 64 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 65 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 66 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 67 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 68 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 69 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 70 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 71 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 72 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 73 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 74 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 75 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 76 of 77 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______         Page 77 of 77 

 



   
Council Meeting 9.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Excellence in Asset Management

Excellence in Transportation Systems
Milestones: Implement the Asset Management Plan

Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in an
acceptable condition and well maintained
Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial
Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Authorizing the
Issuance of Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series
2021; Awarding the Sale Thereof; Levying a Tax, and Providing for the
Security and Payment of Said Bonds; Authorizing the Execution and
Delivery of a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement; Approving the Official
Statement; Enacting Other Provisions Relating to the Subject; and
Declaring an Effective Date.   

BACKGROUND:
Since 2012, Addison voters have approved several bond programs to fund
various projects throughout Town.  Once voter approval is secured, the City
Council is authorized to issue bonds to pay for projects.

The proposed 2021 General Obligation Bond issuance totals $16,095,000 and
consists of the following:  

$8,000,000, from the authorized $16,000,000 ($3,000,000 issued to date),
from Proposition 1 of the 2012 Bond Election for reconstruction of Midway
Road.  Council awarded a construction contract to Tiseo Construction on
December 8th, 2020.  The project is currently under construction with an
anticipated completion date in Fiscal Year 2024.
$3,145,000, from the authorized $6,723,000 ($365,000 issued to date), from
Proposition C of the 2019 Bond Election for parks and recreation
improvements and facilities. Council approved a contract for design of locker
room, pool, and gymnasium and track improvements to the Addison Athletic
Club on June 9th, 2020.  Design is nearing completion with construction
anticipated to begin in September 2021 with an estimated construction
timeline of 12-24 months.
$4,950,000, from the authorized $7,395,000 ($140,000 issued to date), from
Proposition D of the 2019 Bond Election for improvements to existing



municipal buildings.  Council approved a contract for design of roof and
HVAC improvements to the Addison Athletic Club on June 9th, 2020. 
Design is nearing completion with construction anticipated to begin in
September 2021 with an estimated construction timeline of 12-24 months. 
Additionally, Council approved a professional services contract for
engineering and project management of phase one facility projects on April
13, 2021.  The phase one projects include roofing, HVAC, and ADA
improvements on all Town facilities except the Addison Athletic Club (i.e.,
Town Hall, Service Center, Finance Building, etc.).  It is anticipated that all
phase one projects will be completed by the end of Fiscal Year 2022.

Certain details concerning the General Obligation Bonds will not be known until
the completion of the sale on August 10, 2021.  This information will be made
available at the Council meeting on August 10, 2021, prior to the discussion of
this item.  The ordinance will be updated at the meeting.  

The Town of Addison's AAA/Aaa bond ratings from Standard and Poor's and
Moody's were reaffirmed as part of this bond sale.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - Authorization of 2021 General Obligation Bonds 



 
#8083890.1 
 

 

ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

relating to 

 

$_______________ 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
SERIES 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted:  August 10, 2021 

 

  



 (i) 
#8083890.1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.01. Definitions................................................................................................................6 
Section 1.02. Findings....................................................................................................................8 
Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings ..................................................................8 
Section 1.04. Interpretation ............................................................................................................8 

ARTICLE II 
 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND 

Section 2.01. Payment of the Bonds ..............................................................................................9 
Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund ........................................................................................9 

ARTICLE III 
 

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 
REGARDING THE BONDS 

Section 3.01. Authorization .........................................................................................................10 
Section 3.02. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest ........................................................10 
Section 3.03. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment ...............................................................11 
Section 3.04. Execution and Registration of Bonds ....................................................................12 
Section 3.05. Ownership ..............................................................................................................13 
Section 3.06. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange ....................................................................13 
Section 3.07. Cancellation ...........................................................................................................14 
Section 3.08. Temporary Bonds ...................................................................................................14 
Section 3.09. Replacement Bonds ...............................................................................................15 
Section 3.10. Book-Entry-Only System.......................................................................................16 
Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only System .....16 
Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co .........................................................................................17 

ARTICLE IV 
 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.01. Limitation on Redemption .....................................................................................17 
Section 4.02. Optional Redemption .............................................................................................17 
Section 4.03. Reserved .................................................................................................................18 
Section 4.04. Partial Redemption.................................................................................................18 
Section 4.05. Notice of Redemption to Owners ..........................................................................18 
Section 4.06. Payment Upon Redemption ...................................................................................18 



 (ii) 
#8083890.1 

Section 4.07. Effect of Redemption .............................................................................................19 
Section 4.08. Conditional Notice of Redemption ........................................................................19 
Section 4.09. Lapse of Payment ...................................................................................................19 

ARTICLE V 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar .....................................................19 
Section 5.02. Qualifications .........................................................................................................20 
Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar .....................................................................20 
Section 5.04. Termination ............................................................................................................20 
Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners ..................................................................................20 
Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.........................................................20 
Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor ..........................................................................20 

ARTICLE VI 
 

FORM OF THE BONDS 

Section 6.01. Form Generally ......................................................................................................21 
Section 6.02. Form of the Bonds .................................................................................................21 
Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration ................................................................................................27 
Section 6.04. Legal Opinion ........................................................................................................27 
Section 6.05. Statement Insurance ...............................................................................................27 

ARTICLE VII 
 

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS;  
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS 

Section 7.01. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement ..........................................................................28 
Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds ..............................................................................28 
Section 7.03. Deposit of Proceeds ...............................................................................................29 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; 
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS 

Section 8.01. Creation of Funds ...................................................................................................29 
Section 8.02. Interest and Sinking Fund ......................................................................................29 
Section 8.03. Construction Fund ..................................................................................................30 
Section 8.04. Security of Funds ...................................................................................................30 
Section 8.05. Deposit of Proceeds ...............................................................................................30 
Section 8.06. Investments ............................................................................................................30 
Section 8.07. Investment Income .................................................................................................30 



 (iii) 
#8083890.1 

ARTICLE IX 
 

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds ............................................................................................31 
Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants ...................................................................31 
Section 9.03. Federal Income Tax Matters ..................................................................................31 
Section 9.04. No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing.................................33 
Section 9.05. No Federal Guaranty ..............................................................................................33 
Section 9.06. No Hedge Bonds ....................................................................................................33 
Section 9.07. No Arbitrage ..........................................................................................................33 
Section 9.08. Arbitrage Rebate ....................................................................................................33 
Section 9.09. Information Reporting ...........................................................................................34 
Section 9.10. Record Retention ...................................................................................................34 
Section 9.11. Registration ............................................................................................................34 
Section 9.12. Deliberate Actions .................................................................................................34 
Section 9.13. Continuing Obligation ...........................................................................................35 

ARTICLE X 
 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 10.01. Events of Default ...................................................................................................35 
Section 10.02. Remedies for Default .............................................................................................35 
Section 10.03. Remedies Not Exclusive ........................................................................................35 

ARTICLE XI 
 

DISCHARGE 

Section 11.01. Discharge ...............................................................................................................36 

ARTICLE XII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 12.01. Annual Reports ......................................................................................................36 
Section 12.02. Material Event Notices ..........................................................................................36 
Section 12.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments ...........................................................38 

ARTICLE XIII 
 

AMENDMENTS 

Section 13.01. Amendments ..........................................................................................................39 



 (iv) 
#8083890.1 

ARTICLE XIV 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 14.01. Changes to Ordinance ............................................................................................40 
Section 14.02. Partial Invalidity.....................................................................................................40 
Section 14.03. No Personal Liability .............................................................................................40 

ARTICLE XV 
 

EFFECTIVENESS 

Section 15.01. Effectiveness ..........................................................................................................40 
 

 



 - 5 - 
#8083890.1 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TOWN 
OF ADDISON, TEXAS, GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 
SERIES 2021 IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
OF $_______________; AWARDING THE SALE THEREOF; 
LEVYING A TAX, AND PROVIDING FOR THE SECURITY 
FOR AND PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A PAYING 
AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT; APPROVING THE 
OFFICIAL STATEMENT; ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS 
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT; AND DECLARING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison (the “Town”) intends to issue bonds to finance public 
improvements the City Council considers necessary within the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the bonds hereinafter authorized were duly and favorably voted, as required 
by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, at elections held in the Town, on May 12, 
2012 and November 5, 2019 (the “Elections”); and 

WHEREAS, at the Elections, the following are among the purposes and amounts of the 
bonds which were authorized, reflecting any amount previously issued pursuant to each voted 
authorization, the amount therefrom being issued pursuant to this Ordinance, and the balance that 
remains unissued after the issuance of the bonds herein authorized, to wit: and 

 

Purpose 

 

Date 
Authorized 

 

Amount 
Authorized 

 

Amount 
Previously 

Issued 

 

Amount 
Being    

Issued(1) 

 

Unissued 
Balance 

Street Utilities 5/12/2012 $29,500,000 $ 6,500,000 $ 8,000,000 $15,000,000 
Parking Facilities 5/12/2012 3,000,000 -0- -0- 3,000,000 
Keller Springs Road 
and Airport Parkway 
Improvements 

11/5/2019 22,300,000 14,030,000 -0- 8,270,000 

Quorum Drive and 
Montfort Drive 
Improvements 

11/5/2019 33,602,000 -0- -0- 33,602,000 

Parks and Recreation 11/5/2019 6,723,000 365,000 3,145,000 3,213,000 
Town Facilities and 
Improvements 

11/5/2019 7,395,000 140,000 4,950,000 2,305,000 

Traffic Control 
Systems 

11/5/2019         600,000 600,000 -0-  -0- 

  $103,120,000 $21,635,000 $16,095,000 $65,390,000 
___________________ 
1 Includes premium in the amount of $_________ allocated to voted authorization. 

 



 - 6 - 
#8083890.1 

WHEREAS, the City Council has found and determined that it is necessary and in the 
best interests of the Town and its citizens that it issue such bonds authorized by this Ordinance; 
and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance is considered is open to the public as 
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as 
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.01. Definitions. 

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in 
this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below: 

“Business Day” means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or other day on 
which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office is located 
are required or authorized by law or executive order to close. 

“Bond” means any of the Bonds. 

“Bonds” means the bonds authorized to be issued by Section 3.01 of this Ordinance and 
designated as “Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation, Series 2021. 

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Bonds. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and, with respect to a 
specific section thereof, such reference shall be deemed to include (a) the Regulations 
promulgated under such section, (b) any successor provision of similar import hereafter enacted, 
(c) any corresponding provision of any subsequent Internal Revenue Code, and (d) the 
Regulations promulgated under the provisions described in (b) and (c). 

“Delivery Date” means the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers and designated 
as the initial date of the Bonds by Section 3.02(a) of this Ordinance. 

 “Designated Payment/Transfer Office” means (i) with respect to the initial Paying 
Agent/Registrar named herein, its office in Dallas, Texas, or at such other location designated by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar and (ii) with respect to any successor Paying Agent/Registrar, the 
office of such successor designated and located as may be agreed upon by the Town and such 
successor. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any 
successor securities depository. 



 - 7 - 
#8083890.1 

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities 
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants. 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System. 

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Section 10.01 of this 
Ordinance. 

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into 
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 
“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) 
has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the City 
Council. 

“Initial Bond” means the initial bond authorized by Section 3.04(d) of this Ordinance. 

“Interest and Sinking Fund” means the interest and sinking fund established by 
Section 2.02 of this Ordinance. 

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates upon which interest on the Bonds is 
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity or prior redemption, such dates being 
February 15 and August 15 of each year commencing February 15, 2022. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Ordinance” means this Ordinance. 

“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Bond or Bonds, as shown in 
the Register. 

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means initially The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, National Association, Dallas, Texas, or any successor thereto as provided in this 
Ordinance. 

“Purchaser(s)” means the initial purchaser(s) of the Bonds as set forth in Section 7.01. 

“Record Date” means the last Business Day of the month next preceding an Interest 
Payment Date. 

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Ordinance. 



 - 8 - 
#8083890.1 

“Regulations” means the applicable proposed, temporary or final Treasury Regulations 
promulgated under the Code or, to the extent applicable to the Code, under the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954, as such regulations may be amended or supplemented from time to time. 

“Representations Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the Town 
and DTC. 

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b). 

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b). 

“Town” means the Town of Addison, Texas. 

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
payment of principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds as the same come 
due and payable or money set aside for the payment of Bonds duly called for redemption prior to 
maturity. 

Section 1.02. Findings. 

The declarations, determinations, and findings declared, made, and found in the preamble 
to this Ordinance are hereby adopted, restated, and made a part of the operative provisions 
hereof.  

Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings. 

The table of contents, titles, and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Ordinance 
have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof 
and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never 
be considered or given any effect in construing this Ordinance or any provision hereof or in 
ascertaining intent, if any question of intent should arise. 

Section 1.04. Interpretation. 

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be 
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and 
words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural 
number and vice versa. 

(b) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally 
construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein. 



 - 9 - 
#8083890.1 

ARTICLE II 
 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND 

Section 2.01. Payment of the Bonds. 

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and laws of the State 
of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each 
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Bonds or any interest thereon is outstanding and 
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the 
Town, at a rate sufficient, within the limit prescribed by law, to pay the debt service 
requirements of the Bonds, being (i) the interest on the Bonds, and (ii) a sinking fund for their 
redemption at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent per annum (whichever amount is the 
greater), when due and payable, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of 
collection. 

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against 
all property appearing on the tax rolls of the Town most recently approved in accordance with 
law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking 
Fund. 

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or 
required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and 
committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when and as 
due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 

(d) If the liens and provisions of this Ordinance shall be released in a manner 
permitted by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or 
appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking 
Fund may be suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.  In determining the 
aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bonds, there shall be subtracted the amount of any 
Bonds that have been duly called for redemption and for which money has been deposited with 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for such redemption. 

Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund. 

(a) The Town hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the 
“Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021, Interest and Sinking Fund” 
(the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official depository bank of the 
Town separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the Town. 

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest 
and Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of 
the Bonds when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 



 - 10 - 
#8083890.1 

ARTICLE III 
 

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 
REGARDING THE BONDS 

Section 3.01. Authorization. 

The Town’s bonds to be designated “Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2021” (the “Bonds”), are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in 
accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, specifically Chapter 1331, 
Texas Government Code, as amended.  The Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate principal 
amount of $_______________ for the following purposes, to wit: (i) engineering, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, repairing, developing, extending and expanding streets, 
thoroughfares, intersections, grade separations, sidewalks, and other public ways of the Town, 
including related streetscape improvements, public utility improvements, storm drainage 
facilities and improvements, signalization and other traffic controls, street lighting and the 
acquisition of land therefor (2012 Authorization), (ii) acquiring, developing, renovating and 
improving parks, park facilities, recreation facilities, including the Addison Athletic Club, and 
open spaces for park and recreation purposes in and for the Town, including the acquisition of 
land therefor (2019 Authorization), (iii) renovating, repairing, improving, and equipping existing 
Town service, public safety, conference and administrative facilities, including repair, 
replacement, and improvement of roofs, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, air conditioning, 
heating and ventilation equipment and systems, façade improvements, and improvements 
required by the Americans with Disabilities Act and other applicable laws (2019 Authorization),, 
(iv) improving, acquiring and equipping advanced traffic control systems and facilities and (v) 
paying of the costs of issuance of the Bonds. 

Section 3.02. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest. 

(a) The Bonds shall be dated August 1, 2021.  The Bonds shall be in fully registered 
form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall 
be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Bond, which shall be numbered T-1. 

(b) The Bonds shall mature on February 15 in the years and in the principal amounts 
set forth in the following schedule: 



 - 11 - 
#8083890.1 

Years 
Principal 
Amount Interest Rate Years 

Principal 
Amount Interest Rate 

      
2/15/2022   2/15/2032   
2/15/2023   2/15/2033   
2/15/2024   2/15/2034   
2/15/2025   2/15/2035   
2/15/2026   2/15/2036   
2/15/2027   2/15/2037   
2/15/2028   2/15/2038   
2/15/2029   2/15/2039   
2/15/2030   2/15/2040   
2/15/2031   2/15/2041   

      
(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Bond respectively until its maturity or 

prior redemption from the later of the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser (the 
“Delivery Date”) or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or 
provided for at the rates per annum for each maturity specified in the schedule contained in 
subsection (b) above.  Such interest shall be payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15 
of each year commencing February 15, 2022, and shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day 
year of twelve 30-day months. 

Section 3.03. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment. 

(a) The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be 
paid in lawful money of the United States of America. 

(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at 
the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of nonpayment of 
interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for 
such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the 
Town.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due 
interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall 
be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first 
class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing on the Register at the 
close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment 
Date, and sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Owner, first class United States mail, 
postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner as it appears in the Register, or by such other 
customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Owner; 
provided, however, that the Owner shall bear all risk and expense of such alternative banking 
arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of the Bonds, 
interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on file with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 



 - 12 - 
#8083890.1 

(d) The principal of each Bond shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date, 
whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof upon presentation and 
surrender of such Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a 
Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or 
authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next 
succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking 
institutions are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same 
force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall 
be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due 
and payable. 

(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in 
trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owners of the Bonds to 
which the Unclaimed Payments pertain.  Subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code, 
Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto for three years after 
the applicable payment or redemption date shall be applied to the next payment or payments on 
the Bonds thereafter coming due and, to the extent any such money remains after the retirement 
of all outstanding Bonds, shall be paid to the Town to be used for any lawful purpose.  
Thereafter, neither the Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, nor any other person shall be liable or 
responsible to any Owners of such Bonds for any further payment of such unclaimed moneys or 
on account of any such Bonds, subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code. 

Section 3.04. Execution and Registration of Bonds. 

(a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Town by the Mayor and the City 
Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the Town shall be 
impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the Bonds shall have the 
same effect as if each of the Bonds had been signed manually and in person by each of said 
officers, and such facsimile seal on the Bonds shall have the same effect as if the official seal of 
the Town had been manually impressed upon each of the Bonds. 

(b) In the event that any officer of the Town whose manual or facsimile signature 
appears on the Bonds ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before 
the delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient 
for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office. 

(c) Except as provided below, no Bonds shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose 
or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears thereon 
the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly 
authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Bonds.  In 
lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial Bonds 



 - 13 - 
#8083890.1 

delivered at the Closing Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s Registration 
Certificate substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which Certificate shall be 
evidence that the Bond has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, 
that it is a valid and binding obligation of the Town, and that it has been registered by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

(d) On the Closing Date, one initial Bond (the “Initial Bond”) representing the entire 
principal amount of all Bonds, payable in stated installments to the initial purchaser, or its 
designee, executed by the Mayor and City Secretary of the Town, approved by the Attorney 
General, and registered and manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, will be 
delivered to the initial purchaser or its designee.  Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial Bond and deliver to DTC on behalf of the initial 
purchaser one registered definitive Bond for each year of maturity of the Bonds in the aggregate 
principal amount of all Bonds for such maturity, registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of DTC. 

Section 3.05. Ownership. 

(a) The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person 
in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of 
making and receiving payment as herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in 
whose name such Bond is registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable), 
and for all other purposes, whether or not such Bond is overdue, and neither the Town nor the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary. 

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall 
discharge the liability of the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the extent 
of the sums paid. 

Section 3.06. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange. 

(a) So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, the Town shall cause the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in 
which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall provide for the registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance with this Ordinance. 

(b) The ownership of a Bond may be transferred only upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar 
with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  No transfer of any Bond shall be effective until entered in the Register. 

(c) The Bonds shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at 
the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of 
the same maturity and interest rate and in a denomination or denominations of any integral 
multiple of $5,000, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of 
the Bonds presented for exchange.  The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby authorized to 
authenticate and deliver Bonds exchanged for other Bonds in accordance with this Section. 



 - 14 - 
#8083890.1 

(d) Each exchange Bond delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with 
this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to 
the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of 
which such exchange Bond is delivered. 

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration, 
subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Bonds.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or 
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the registration, 
transfer, or exchange of a Bond. 

(f) Neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, 
transfer or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 calendar 
days prior to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not be 
applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond. 

Section 3.07. Cancellation. 

All Bonds paid or redeemed before scheduled maturity in accordance with this 
Ordinance, and all Bonds in lieu of which exchange Bonds or replacement Bonds are 
authenticated and delivered in accordance with this Ordinance, shall be canceled and proper 
records made regarding such payment, redemption, exchange, or replacement.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall then return such canceled Bonds to the Town or may in accordance with 
law dispose of such cancelled Bonds. 

Section 3.08. Temporary Bonds. 

(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Bond and pending the 
preparation of definitive Bonds, the proper officers of the Town may execute and, upon the 
Town’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more 
temporary Bonds that are printed, lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed, or otherwise 
produced, in any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the definitive Bonds in lieu of which 
they are delivered, without coupons, and with such appropriate insertions, omissions, 
substitutions, and other variations as the officers of the Town executing such temporary Bonds 
may determine, as evidenced by their signing of such temporary Bonds. 

(b) Until exchanged for Bonds in definitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall 
be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance. 

(c) The Town, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar the Bonds in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Bond or Bonds in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Bonds in temporary form and shall authenticate and deliver in 
exchange therefor a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and series, in definitive form, in the 
authorized denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as the Bond or Bonds in 
temporary form surrendered.  Such exchange shall be made without the making of any charge 
therefor to any Owner. 



 - 15 - 
#8083890.1 

Section 3.09. Replacement Bonds. 

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated 
Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a 
replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously 
outstanding.  The Town or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner of such Bond to 
pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be 
imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith. 

(b) In the event that any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence 
of notice or knowledge that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall 
authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a 
number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first complies with the 
following requirements: 

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her 
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Bond; 

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to save it and the Town harmless; 

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not 
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or 
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and 

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the Town and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Bond, a bona fide purchaser of the 
original Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such 
original Bond, the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to recover such 
replacement Bond from the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking therefrom, 
except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity 
provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the Town or the 
Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith. 

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully 
taken Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its 
discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, may pay such Bond when it becomes due and 
payable. 

(e) Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute 
an original additional contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to the benefits and 
security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such 
replacement Bond is delivered. 



 - 16 - 
#8083890.1 

Section 3.10. Book-Entry-Only System. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, upon initial issuance of the Bond, the 
Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  The definitive Bonds 
shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate bond for each of the maturities thereof. 

(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, 
the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC 
Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the 
Bonds.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the Town and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the 
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in 
the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as 
shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of 
redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an 
Owner, as shown in the Register of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or 
interest on the Bonds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the 
Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose 
name each Bond is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose 
of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on Bonds, for the purpose of giving 
notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of registering 
transfer with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or 
upon the order of the respective Owners as shown in the Register, as provided in this Ordinance, 
or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and 
effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Town’s obligations with respect to payment of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person 
other than an Owner, as shown in the Register, shall receive a certificate evidencing the 
obligation of the Town to make payments of amounts due pursuant to this Ordinance.  Upon 
delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has 
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the word “Cede & Co.” in this 
Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

(c) The Representations Letter previously executed and delivered by the Town, and 
applicable to the Town’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities 
depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Bonds. 

Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only 
System. 

In the event that the Town or the Paying Agent/Registrar determines that DTC is 
incapable of discharging its responsibilities described herein and in the Representations Letter of 
the Town to DTC, and that it is in the best interest of the Town and the beneficial owners of the 
Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, or in the event DTC discontinues the 
services described herein, the Town shall (i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified 
to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 
notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such successor securities depository and 



 - 17 - 
#8083890.1 

transfer one or more separate Bonds to such successor securities depository; or (ii) notify DTC 
and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of certificated Bonds and cause the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate registered Bonds to DTC Participants having 
Bonds credited to their DTC accounts.  In such event, the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to 
being registered in the Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be 
registered in the name of the successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name 
or names Owners transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as the 
Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect 
to principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds, and all notices with respect to such 
Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representations 
Letter of the Town to DTC. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.01. Limitation on Redemption. 

The Bonds shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as provided in 
this Article IV.  

Section 4.02. Optional Redemption. 

(a) The Town reserves the option to redeem Bonds maturing on and after 
February 15, 2031 in whole or any part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on 
August 15, 2030 or on any date thereafter, such redemption date or dates to be fixed by the 
Town, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds called for redemption plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption. 

(b) If less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional 
redemption, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be 
redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot the Bonds, or portions 
thereof, within such maturity or maturities and in such principal amounts for redemption. 

(c) The Town, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period 
shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of 
such redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed. 



 - 18 - 
#8083890.1 

Section 4.03. Reserved. 

Section 4.04. Partial Redemption. 

(a) A portion of a single Bond of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be 
redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  If 
such a Bond is to be partially redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat each $5,000 
portion of the Bond as though it were a single Bond for purposes of selection for redemption. 

(b) Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange 
Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Bonds so 
surrendered, such exchange being without charge. 

(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the Town in writing of the 
principal amount to be redeemed of any Bond as to which only a portion thereof is to be 
redeemed. 

Section 4.05. Notice of Redemption to Owners. 

(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Bonds by 
sending notice by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the 
date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Bond (or part thereof) to be redeemed, at the 
address shown on the Register at the close of business on the Business Day next preceding the 
date of mailing such notice. 

(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at 
which the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Bonds outstanding 
are to be redeemed, an identification of the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed. 

(c) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to 
have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice. 

Section 4.06. Payment Upon Redemption. 

(a) Before or on each redemption date, the Town shall deposit with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Bonds to be redeemed on such date 
by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying Agent/Registrar 
from the Town and shall use such funds solely for the purpose of paying the principal of, 
redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on the Bonds being redeemed. 

(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Bond called for redemption at the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for 
redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of, redemption premium, if any, 
and accrued interest on such Bond to the date of redemption from the money set aside for such 
purpose. 



 - 19 - 
#8083890.1 

Section 4.07. Effect of Redemption. 

(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.05 of this 
Ordinance, the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on 
the date fixed for redemption and, unless the Town defaults in its obligation to make provision 
for the payment of the principal thereof, redemption premium, if any, or accrued interest thereon, 
such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to bear interest from and after the date fixed for 
redemption, whether or not such Bonds are presented and surrendered for payment on such date. 

(b) If the Town shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a 
redemption date, then any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear 
interest at the rate stated on the Bond until due provision is made for the payment of same by the 
Town. 

Section 4.08. Conditional Notice of Redemption. 

The Town reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds 
conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events. Such notice may state (i) that the 
redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount 
equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such 
other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the Town 
retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if 
the Town delivers a certificate of the Town to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and redemption shall be of no 
effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited or if the notice is 
rescinded. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such rescission of a 
conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any Bonds subject to conditional 
redemption and such redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding and the rescission 
of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a conditional 
notice of redemption, the failure of the Town to make moneys and or authorized securities 
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of 
default. 

Section 4.09. Lapse of Payment. 

Money set aside for the redemption of Bonds and remaining unclaimed by the Owners of 
such Bonds shall be subject to the provisions of Section 3.03(f) hereof. 

ARTICLE V 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar. 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association, Dallas, Texas, is 
hereby appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds. 



 - 20 - 
#8083890.1 

Section 5.02. Qualifications. 

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, a trust company organized 
under the laws of the State of Texas, or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve 
as and perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Bonds. 

Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(a) At all times while any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Town will maintain a 
Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance.  The Mayor is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement with the Paying Agent/Registrar 
specifying the duties and responsibilities of the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar in 
substantially the form presented at this meeting, such form of agreement being hereby approved.  
The signature of the Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary of the Town. 

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the 
Town will promptly appoint a replacement. 

Section 5.04. Termination. 

The Town, upon not less than sixty (60) days’ notice, reserves the right to terminate the 
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to 
be terminated written notice of such termination. 

Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners. 

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Town 
will cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner by first class United States mail, 
postage prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of the change 
and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions. 

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar and executing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement, the Paying Agent/Registrar is deemed to have agreed to the 
provisions of this Ordinance and that it will perform the duties and functions of Paying 
Agent/Registrar prescribed thereby. 

Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor. 

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the 
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent 
books and records relating to the Bonds to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar. 



 - 21 - 
#8083890.1 

ARTICLE VI 
 

FORM OF THE BONDS 

Section 6.01. Form Generally. 

(a) The Bonds, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas, the Bond of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Assignment 
form to appear on each of the Bonds, (i) shall be substantially in the form set forth in this Article, 
with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as are permitted 
or required by this Ordinance, and (ii) may have such letters, numbers, or other marks of 
identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on Uniform Securities 
Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such legends and 
endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as, consistently 
herewith, may be determined by the Town or by the officers executing such Bonds, as evidenced 
by their execution thereof. 

(b) Any portion of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse side thereof, 
with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bonds.  

(c) The definitive Bonds, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed, 
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or 
produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Bonds, as 
evidenced by their execution thereof. 

(d) The Initial Bond submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be 
typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.  

Section 6.02. Form of the Bonds. 

The form of the Bonds, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Bonds, shall be substantially as 
follows: 



 - 22 - 
#8083890.1 

(a) Form of Bond. 

REGISTERED 
No. _________ 

REGISTERED 
$_________ 

United States of America 
State of Texas 

County of Dallas 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND 
SERIES 2021 

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: DELIVERY DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 

______% February 15, ____ September 14, 2021 ______ ___ 

The Town of Addison (the “Town”), in the County of Dallas, State of Texas, for value 
received, hereby promises to pay to 

_____________________________ 

or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of 

_______________________ DOLLARS 

unless this Bond shall have been sooner called for redemption and the payment of the principal 
hereof shall have been provided for, and to pay interest on such principal amount from the later 
of Delivery Date specified above or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has 
been paid or provided for until payment of such principal amount has been provided for, at the 
per annum rate of interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months, such interest to be paid semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each 
year, commencing February 15, 2022. 

The principal of this Bond shall be payable without exchange or collection charges in 
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at 
the designated office in Dallas, Texas, of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 
National Association, as Paying Agent/Registrar (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”), or, 
with respect to a successor paying agent/registrar, at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of 
such successor Paying Agent/Registrar.  Interest on this Bond is payable by check dated as of the 
interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner 
at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar or by such 
other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the 
registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear all risk and expenses of 
such customary banking arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal 
amount of the Bonds, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on 
file with the Paying Agent/Registrar.  For the purpose of the payment of interest on this Bond, 
the registered owner shall be the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of 
business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the last business day of the month next preceding 
such interest payment date; provided, however, that in the event of nonpayment of interest on a 



 - 23 - 
#8083890.1 

scheduled payment date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment 
(a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds 
for the payment of such interest have been received from the Town.  Notice of the Special 
Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment 
Date,” which date shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five 
business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, 
to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at 
the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.   

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday, 
Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or authorized by 
law or executive order to close, the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day that is 
not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions are required or 
authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on 
the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of 
nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable. 

This Bond is dated August 1, 2021 and is one of a series of fully registered bonds 
specified in the title hereof issued in the aggregate principal amount of $_______________  
(herein referred to as the “Bonds”), issued pursuant to a certain ordinance of the Town (the 
“Ordinance”) for the purpose of providing funds for certain public improvements within the 
Town as described in the Ordinance, and to pay for the professional services of attorneys, 
financial advisors and other professionals in connection with the Project and the issuance of the 
Bonds. 

The Town has reserved the option to redeem the Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 
2031, in whole or in part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on August 15, 2030, 
or on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds so called for 
redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  If less than all of the Bonds 
are to be redeemed, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof 
to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot or other customary 
method that results in a random selection the Bonds, or portions thereof, within such maturity 
and in such principal amounts, for redemption. 

Notice of such redemption or redemptions shall be given by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner of 
each of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part.  Notice having been so given, the Bonds or 
portions thereof designated for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date 
specified in such notice; from and after such date, notwithstanding that any of the Bonds or 
portions thereof so called for redemption shall not have been surrendered for payment, interest 
on such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to accrue.  

The Town reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds 
conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events. Such notice may state (i) that the 
redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount 
equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such 



 - 24 - 
#8083890.1 

other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the Town 
retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if 
the Town delivers a certificate of the Town to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and redemption shall be of no 
effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited or if the notice is 
rescinded. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such rescission of a 
conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any Bonds subject to conditional notice 
of redemption and such redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding and the 
rescission of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a 
conditional redemption, the failure of the Town to make moneys and or authorized securities 
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of 
default. 

As provided in the Ordinance, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this 
Bond is transferable upon surrender of this Town for transfer at the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence 
of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully 
registered Bonds of the same stated maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate 
of interest, and for the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the designated 
transferee or transferees. 

Neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or 
exchange any Bond called for redemption where such redemption is scheduled to occur within 
45 calendar days of the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not 
be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond. 

The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in 
whose name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as 
herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered 
on the Record Date, or the Special Record Date, as applicable) and for all other purposes, 
whether or not this Bond be overdue, and neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
be affected by notice to the contrary.  

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that the issuance of this Bond and the 
series of which it is a part is duly authorized by law, and has been authorized by a vote of the 
properly qualified electors of the Town; that all acts, conditions and things required to be done 
precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been properly done and performed and have 
happened in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; and that ad valorem 
taxes upon all taxable property in the Town have been levied for and pledged to the payment of 
the debt service requirements of the Bonds, within the limit prescribed by law; and that the total 
indebtedness of the Town, including the Bonds, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory 
limitation. 



 - 25 - 
#8083890.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town has caused this Bond to be executed by the manual 
or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the Town and countersigned by the manual or facsimile 
signature of the City Secretary, and the official seal of the Town has been duly impressed or 
placed in facsimile on this Bond.  

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Mayor, Town of Addison, Texas 
____________________________________ 
City Secretary, 
Town of Addison, Texas 
 
[SEAL] 
 

(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.  The following Comptroller’s 
Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive Bonds if such certificate on the Initial 
Bond is fully executed. 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER  § 
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS   § REGISTER NO. ____________ 
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney 
General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Bond has been examined by him as required 
by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the Town of Addison, Texas; and 
that this Bond has this day been registered by me. 

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, _____________________. 

 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 



 - 26 - 
#8083890.1 

(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar.  The following Certificate of 
Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from each Initial Bond if the Comptroller’s Registration 
Certificate appears thereon. 

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Bond of this series of 
Bonds was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the Bonds referred 
to in the within-mentioned Ordinance. 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON  
TRUST COMPANY,  
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

 as Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 
Dated:  ________________ By:  ________________________________  
  Authorized Signatory 
 

(d) Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto (print or 
typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee):   __________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other identifying number: ____________________) the within Bond and all 
rights hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints ____________________ 
attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration hereof, with full power of 
substitution in the premises.  

Dated: __________________ 

Signature Guaranteed By: 

____________________________________ 

____________________________________ 
Authorized Signatory 

____________________________________ 

NOTICE:  The Signature on this Assignment 
must correspond with the name of the 
registered owner as it appears on the face of 
the within Bond in every particular and must 
be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 



 - 27 - 
#8083890.1 

(e) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in subsections (a) through (d) of this 
Section, except for the following alterations:  

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings “INTEREST 
RATE,” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown 
Below” and the words “CUSIP NO.” shall be deleted; 

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Bond, the words “on the Maturity Date 
specified above, the sum of ____________________ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and 
the following will be inserted: “on the fifteenth day of February in the years, in the 
principal installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates set forth in the 
following schedule:  

Year Principal Amount Interest Rate 

(Information to be inserted from Section 3.02(c) hereof). 

(iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered T-1. 

Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration. 

The Town may secure identification numbers through the CUSIP Service Bureau 
managed by S & P Global IQ Intelligence on behalf of the American Bankers Association, and 
may authorize the printing of such numbers on the face of the Bonds.  It is expressly provided, 
however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall be of no 
significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and neither the Town nor the attorneys 
approving said Bonds as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers incorrectly 
printed on the Bonds. 

Section 6.04. Legal Opinion. 

The approving legal opinion of Bracewell LLP, Bond Counsel, may be attached to or 
printed on the reverse side of each Bond over the certification of the City Secretary of the Town, 
which may be executed in facsimile. 

Section 6.05. Statement Insurance. 

A statement relating to a municipal bond insurance policy, if any, to be issued for the 
Bonds, may be printed on each Bond. 



 - 28 - 
#8083890.1 

ARTICLE VII 
 

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS;  
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS 

Section 7.01. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement. 

(a) The Bonds, having been duly advertised and offered for sale at competitive bid, 
are hereby officially sold and awarded to ____________________ (the “Purchaser”) for a 
purchase price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus a cash premium in the amount of 
$_____________, being the bid which produced the lowest true interest cost to the Town. The 
Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of the Purchaser or its designee. 

(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda, 
supplement or amendment thereto, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted and is hereby 
deemed final as of its date within the meaning and for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 
15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  The Mayor and City Secretary 
are hereby authorized and directed to cause to be prepared a final Official Statement (the 
“Official Statement”) incorporating applicable pricing information pertaining to the Bonds, and 
to execute the same by manual or facsimile signature and deliver appropriate numbers of 
executed copies thereof to the Purchaser.  The Official Statement as thus approved and delivered, 
with such appropriate variations as shall be approved by the Mayor and the Purchaser, may be 
used by the Purchaser in the public offering and sale thereof.  The City Secretary is hereby 
authorized and directed to include and maintain a copy of the Official Statement and any 
addenda, supplement or amendment thereto thus approved among the permanent records of this 
meeting.  The use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the preliminary 
public offering of the Bonds by the Purchaser, is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

(c) All officers of the Town are authorized to execute such documents, certificates 
and receipts as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Bonds in 
accordance with the terms of sale therefor.  Further, in connection with the submission of the 
record of proceedings for the Bonds to the Attorney General of the State of Texas for 
examination and approval of such Bonds, the appropriate officer of the Town is hereby 
authorized and directed to issue a check of the Town payable to the Attorney General of the State 
of Texas as a nonrefundable examination fee in the amount required by Chapter 1202, Texas 
Government Code (such amount per series to be the lesser of (i) 1/10th of 1% of the principal 
amount of such series of the Bonds or (ii) $9,500.) 

(d) The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds is subject to the 
Purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Bracewell LLP, bond counsel for 
the Town, which opinion shall be dated and delivered the Closing Date. 

Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds. 

(a) The Mayor of the Town is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond 
and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination, 
and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the Comptroller of 



 - 29 - 
#8083890.1 

Public Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange or transfer by, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Bonds 
shall be made to the Purchaser or a representative thereof under and subject to the general 
supervision and direction of the Mayor, against receipt by the Town of all amounts due to the 
Town under the terms of sale. 

(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute 
any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City 
Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents and take such actions, and 
the performance of such duties by the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary shall for 
the purposes of this Ordinance have the same force and effect as if such duties were performed 
by the Mayor and City Secretary, respectively. 

Section 7.03. Deposit of Proceeds. 

(a) The proceeds of the Bonds received on the Closing Date, shall be deposited to a 
special account of the Town, such moneys to be dedicated and used solely for the purposes for 
which the Bonds are being issued as herein provided in Section 3.01.  To the extent any of such 
amount is not used for such purposes, such excess shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking 
Fund. 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; 
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS 

Section 8.01. Creation of Funds.   

(a) The Town hereby establishes the following special funds or accounts: 

(i) The Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021, 
Interest and Sinking Fund; and 

(ii) The Town of Addison, Texas General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021 
Construction Fund. 

(b) These funds or accounts shall be maintained at an official depository of the Town. 

Section 8.02. Interest and Sinking Fund.   

(a) The taxes levied under Section 2.01 shall be deposited to the credit of the Interest 
and Sinking Fund at such times and in such amounts as necessary for the timely payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

(b) If the amount of money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is at least equal to the 
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds plus the aggregate amount of interest due 



 - 30 - 
#8083890.1 

and that will become due and payable on such Bonds, no further deposits to that fund need be 
made. 

(c) Money on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be used to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds as such become due and payable. 

Section 8.03. Construction Fund.  (a)  Money on deposit in the Construction Fund, 
including investment earnings thereof, shall be used for the purposes specified in Section 3.01 of 
this Ordinance. 

(b) All amounts remaining in the Construction Fund after the accomplishment of the 
purposes for which the Bonds are hereby issued, including investment earnings of the 
Construction Fund, shall be deposited into the Interest and Sinking Fund. 

Section 8.04. Security of Funds.   

All moneys on deposit in the funds referred to in this Ordinance shall be secured in the 
manner and to the fullest extent required by the laws of the State of Texas for the security of 
public funds, and moneys on deposit in such funds shall be used only for the purposes permitted 
by this Ordinance. 

Section 8.05. Deposit of Proceeds.   

(a) Proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of $_____________, (including premium 
received on the Bonds in the amount of $_____________ allocated to voted authorization), shall 
be deposited to the Construction Fund. 

(b) Premium generated on the Bonds in the amount of $_____________ shall be 
deposited to a special fund, such moneys to be dedicated and used for paying the costs of 
issuance.  Any amounts remaining after the payment of the costs of issuance shall be deposited 
to the Interest and Sinking Fund. 

Section 8.06. Investments. 

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Ordinance, at the option 
of the Town, may be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law. 

(b) Any securities or obligations in which such money is so invested shall be kept and 
held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the proceeds of sale shall be 
timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from the fund from which the 
investment was made. 

Section 8.07. Investment Income. 

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund be 
credited to such fund. 



 - 31 - 
#8083890.1 

(b) Interest and income derived from investment of the funds to be deposited pursuant 
to Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the account where deposited until the acquisition or 
construction of said projects is completed and thereafter, to the extent such interest and income 
are present, such interest and income shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund. 

ARTICLE IX 
 

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds. 

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Bonds and while any of the Bonds are 
outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the 
Interest and Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such interest on and principal of, redemption 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest 
Payment Date, maturity date and, if applicable, on a date of prior redemption. 

Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants. 

(a) The Town will faithfully perform, at all times, any and all covenants, 
undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each Bond; the 
Town will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and 
interest on each Bond on the dates and at the places and manner prescribed in such Bond; and the 
Town will, at the times and in the manner prescribed by this Ordinance, deposit or cause to be 
deposited the amounts of money specified by this Ordinance. 

(b) The Town is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the 
Bonds; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly and 
effectively taken; and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and 
enforceable obligations of the Town in accordance with their terms. 

Section 9.03. Federal Income Tax Matters.   

(a) General.  The Town covenants not to take any action or omit to take any action 
that, if taken or omitted, would cause the interest on the Bonds to be includable in gross income 
for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the Town covenants to comply with 
sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and the provisions set forth in the Federal Tax 
Certificate executed by the Town in connection with the Bonds. 

(b) No Private Activity Bonds.  The Town covenants that it will use the proceeds of 
the Bonds (including investment income) and the property financed, directly or indirectly, with 
such proceeds so that the Bonds will not be “private activity bonds” within the meaning of 
section 141 of the Code.  Furthermore, the Town will not take a deliberate action (as defined in 
section 1.141-2(d)(3) of the Regulations) that causes the Bonds to be a “private activity bond” 
unless it takes a remedial action permitted by section 1.141-12 of the Regulations. 



 - 32 - 
#8083890.1 

(c) No Federal Guarantee.  The Town covenants not to take any action or omit to take 
any action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within 
the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code, except as permitted by section 149(b)(3) of the Code. 

(d) No Hedge Bonds. The Town covenants not to take any action or omit to take 
action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Bonds to be “hedge bonds” within the meaning 
of section 149(g) of the Code.   

(e) No Arbitrage Bonds.  The Town covenants that it will make such use of the 
proceeds of the Bonds (including investment income) and regulate the investment of such 
proceeds of the Bonds so that the Bonds will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of 
section 148(a) of the Code.   

(f) Required Rebate.  The Town covenants that, if the Town does not qualify for an 
exception to the requirements of section 148(f) of the Code, the Town will comply with the 
requirement that certain amounts earned by the Town on the investment of the gross proceeds of 
the Bonds, be rebated to the United States.   

(g) Information Reporting.  The Town covenants to file or cause to be filed with the 
Secretary of the Treasury an information statement concerning the Bonds in accordance with 
section 149(e) of the Code. 

(h) Record Retention.  The Town covenants to retain all material records relating to 
the expenditure of the proceeds (including investment income) of the Bonds and the use of the 
property financed, directly or indirectly, thereby until three years after the last Bond is redeemed 
or paid at maturity (or such other period as provided by subsequent guidance issued by the 
Department of the Treasury) in a manner that ensures their complete access throughout such 
retention period.   

(i) Registration.  If the Bonds are “registration-required bonds” under section 
149(a)(2) of the Code, the Bonds will be issued in registered form. 

(j) Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Town 
will not be required to comply with any of the federal tax covenants set forth above if the Town 
has received an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that such noncompliance will not 
adversely affect the excludability of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes. 

(k) Continuing Compliance.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, 
the Town’s obligations under the federal tax covenants set forth above will survive the 
defeasance and discharge of the Bonds for as long as such matters are relevant to the 
excludability of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

(l) Official Intent.  For purposes of section 1.150-2(d) of the Regulations, to the 
extent that an official intent to reimburse has not previously been adopted by the Town, this 
Ordinance serves as the Town’s official declaration of intent to use proceeds of the Bonds to 
reimburse itself from proceeds of the Bonds issued in the maximum amount authorized by this 
Ordinance for certain expenditures paid in connection with the projects set forth herein.  Any 



 - 33 - 
#8083890.1 

such reimbursement will only be made (i) for an original expenditure paid no earlier than 60 days 
prior to the date hereof and (ii) not later than 18 months after the later of (A) the date the original 
expenditure is paid or (B) the date the project to which such expenditure relates is placed in 
service or abandoned, but in to event more than three years after the original expenditure is paid. 

Section 9.04. No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing. 

The Town covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Bonds, 
including interest or other investment income derived from Bond proceeds, regulate the use of 
property financed, directly or indirectly, with such proceeds, and take such other and further 
action as may be required so that the Bonds will not be “private activity bonds” within the 
meaning of section 141 of the Code.  Moreover, the Town will certify, through an authorized 
officer, employee or agent, that, based upon all facts and estimates known or reasonably 
expected to be in existence on the date the Bonds are delivered, the proceeds of the Bonds will 
not be used in a manner that would cause the Bonds to be “private activity bonds” within the 
meaning of section 141 of the Code. 

Section 9.05. No Federal Guaranty. 

The Town covenants and agrees not to take any action, or knowingly omit to take any 
action within its control, that, if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause the Bonds to be 
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code, except as permitted by 
section 149(b)(3) of the Code.   

Section 9.06. No Hedge Bonds.  

The Town covenants and agrees not to take any action, or knowingly omit to take any 
action, within its control, that, if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause the Bonds to be 
“hedge bonds” within the meaning of section 149(g) of the Code.   

Section 9.07. No Arbitrage. 

The Town covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Bonds, 
including interest or other investment income derived from Bond proceeds, regulate investments 
of proceeds of the Bonds, and take such other and further action as may be required so that the 
Bonds will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148(a) of the Code.  
Moreover, the Town will certify, through an authorized officer, employee or agent, based upon 
all facts and estimates known or reasonably expected to be in existence on the date the Bonds are 
delivered, that the proceeds of the Bonds will not be used in a manner that would cause the 
Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148(a) of the Code. 

Section 9.08. Arbitrage Rebate. 

If the Town does not qualify for an exception to the requirements of section 148(f) of the 
Code relating to the required rebate to the United States, the Town will take all necessary steps to 
comply with the requirement that certain amounts earned by the Town on the investment of the 
“gross proceeds” of the Bonds (within the meaning of section 148(f)(6)(B) of the Code), be 
rebated to the federal government.  Specifically, the Town will (i) maintain records regarding the 



 - 34 - 
#8083890.1 

investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds as may be required to calculate the amount earned 
on the investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds separately from records of amounts on 
deposit in the funds and accounts of the Town allocable to other Bond issues of the Town or 
moneys that do not represent gross proceeds of any bond issues of the Town, (ii) determine at 
such times as are required by the applicable Regulations, the amount earned from the investment 
of the gross proceeds of the Bonds that is required to be rebated to the federal government, and 
(iii) pay, not less often than every fifth anniversary date of the delivery of the Bonds, or on such 
other dates as may be permitted under applicable Regulations, all amounts required to be rebated 
to the federal government.  Further, the Town will not indirectly pay any amount otherwise 
payable to the federal government pursuant to the foregoing requirements to any person other 
than the federal government by entering into any investment arrangement with respect to the 
gross proceeds of the Bonds that might result in a reduction in the amount required to be paid to 
the federal government because such arrangement results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than 
would have resulted if the arrangement had been at arm’s length and had the yield on the issue 
not been relevant to either party. 

Section 9.09. Information Reporting. 

The Town covenants and agrees to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the 
Treasury, not later than the 15th day of the second calendar month after the close of the calendar 
quarter in which the Bonds are issued, an information statement concerning the Bonds, all under 
and in accordance with section 149(e) of the Code. 

Section 9.10. Record Retention.   

The Town will retain all pertinent and material records relating to the use and expenditure 
of the proceeds of the Bonds until three years after the last Bond is redeemed or paid at maturity, 
or such shorter period as authorized by subsequent guidance issued by the Department of the 
Treasury, if applicable.  All records will be kept in a manner that ensures their complete access 
throughout the retention period.  For this purpose, it is acceptable that such records are kept 
either as hardcopy books and records or in an electronic storage and retrieval system, provided 
that such electronic system includes reasonable controls and quality assurance programs that 
assure the ability of the Town to retrieve and reproduce such books and records in the event of an 
examination of the Bonds by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Section 9.11. Registration.   

The Bonds will be issued in registered form. 

Section 9.12. Deliberate Actions.   

The Town will not take a deliberate action (as defined in section 1.141-2(d)(3) of the 
Regulations) that causes the Bonds to fail to meet any requirement of section 141 of the Code 
after the issue date of the Bonds unless an appropriate remedial action is permitted by section 
1.141-12 of the Regulations, the Town takes such remedial action, and a Counsel’s Opinion is 
obtained that such remedial action cures any failure to meet the requirements of section 141 of 
the Code. 



 - 35 - 
#8083890.1 

Section 9.13. Continuing Obligation.  

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the Town’s obligations under the 
covenants and provisions of Sections 9.03 through 9.13, inclusive, shall survive the defeasance 
and discharge of the Bonds for as long as such matters are relevant to the excludability of interest 
on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

ARTICLE X 
 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 10.01. Events of Default. 

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an Event of Default: 

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if 
any, or interest on any of the Bonds when the same becomes due and payable; or 

(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, 
agreement, or obligation of the Town, which default materially and adversely affects the 
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in 
accordance with this Ordinance, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60) 
days after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the Town. 

Section 10.02. Remedies for Default. 

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized 
representative thereof, including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed 
against the Town for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under this 
Ordinance by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law in any 
court of competent jurisdiction for any relief permitted by law, including the specific 
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing 
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of 
such remedies. 

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the 
equal benefit of all Owners of Bonds then outstanding. 

Section 10.03. Remedies Not Exclusive. 

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other 
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to 
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds or now or hereafter existing at law or in 
equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the right 
to accelerate the debt evidenced by the Bonds shall not be available as a remedy under this 
Ordinance. 



 - 36 - 
#8083890.1 

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a 
waiver of any other available remedy. 

ARTICLE XI 
 

DISCHARGE 

Section 11.01. Discharge. 

The Bonds may be defeased, discharged or refunded in any manner permitted by 
applicable law. 

ARTICLE XII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 12.01. Annual Reports. 

(a) The Town shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six months after the 
end of each fiscal year of the Town, financial information and operating data with respect to the 
Town of the general type included in the final Official Statement, being information described in 
the Tables numbered 1 through 6 and 8 through 15, including financial statements of the Town if 
audited financial statements of the Town are then available, and (2) if not provided as part such 
financial information and operating data, audited financial statements of the Town, when and if 
available.  Any financial statements to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance with the 
accounting principles appended to the Official Statement, or such other accounting principles as 
the Town may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and 
(ii) audited, if the Town commissions an audit of such financial statements and the audit is 
completed within the period during which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial 
statements is not complete within 12 months after any such fiscal year end, then the Town shall 
file unaudited financial statements within such 12-month period and audited financial statements 
for the applicable fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such statements becomes available. 

(b) If the Town changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of 
the date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Town otherwise would be 
required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this 
Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific 
referenced to any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is 
available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the 
SEC. 

Section 12.02. Material Event Notices. 

(a) The Town shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) 
Business Days after the occurrence of the event, of any of the following events with respect to 
the Bonds: 



 - 37 - 
#8083890.1 

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(iii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(iv) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(vi) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 
5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(vii) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material; 

(viii) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(ix) Defeasances; 

(x) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, 
if material; 

(xi) Rating changes; 

(xii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Town; 

(xiii) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 
Town or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Town, other than in the 
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an 
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than 
pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

(xiv) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar or change in the name 
of the Paying Agent/Registrar, if material. 

(xv) incurrence of a financial obligation of the Town, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
financial obligation of the Town, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 

(xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which 
reflect financial difficulties.   

For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding clause (xii) is 
considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 



 - 38 - 
#8083890.1 

or similar officer for the Town in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in 
any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has 
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Town, or if such 
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in 
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets of 
business of the Town; and the Town intends the words used in the immediately preceding 
paragraphs (xv) and (xvi) and the definition of financial obligations in those sections to have the 
same meanings as when they are used in rule and sec release no. 34-83885, dated August 20, 
2018.   

(b) The Town shall provide to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the 
MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of a failure by the Town to provide required annual financial 
information and notices of material events in accordance with Sections 12.01 and 12.02.  All 
documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Section shall be accompanied by identifying 
information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

Section 12.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments. 

(a) The Town shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in 
this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the Town remains an “obligated person” with 
respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the Town in any event will give 
notice of any redemption calls and any defeasances that cause the Town to be no longer an 
“obligated person.” 

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial 
owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any 
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The Town undertakes 
to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which 
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to 
provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the 
Town’s financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information 
provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The 
Town does not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its 
usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE TOWN BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR 
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY 
THE TOWN, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY 
COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF 
ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH 
BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC 
PERFORMANCE. 



 - 39 - 
#8083890.1 

(c) No default by the Town in observing or performing its obligations under this 
Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise 
limit the duties of the Town under federal and state securities laws. 

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Town from time to time to 
adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, 
or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Town, but only if (i) the 
provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or 
sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account 
any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such 
changed circumstances, and (ii) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal 
amount (or any greater amount required by any other provisions of this Ordinance that authorizes 
such an amendment) of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (B) an entity or 
individual person that is unaffiliated with the Town (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) 
determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Owners and 
beneficial owners of the Bonds.  If the Town so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall 
include with any amended financial information or operating data next provided in accordance 
with Section 12.01 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of 
the impact of any change in type of financial information or operating data so provide. 

ARTICLE XIII 
 

AMENDMENTS 

Section 13.01. Amendments. 

This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Owners, be binding on the Town, and 
shall not be amended or repealed by the Town so long as any Bond remains outstanding except 
as permitted in this Section.  The Town may, without consent of or notice to any Owners, from 
time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests 
of the Owners, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or 
omission herein.  In addition, the Town may, with the written consent of the Owners of the 
Bonds holding a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, amend, 
add to, or rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of 
all Owners of outstanding Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (i) extend the 
time or times of payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, reduce the principal 
amount thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify 
the terms of payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds, (ii) give any preference to any 
Bond over any other Bond, or (iii) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required to be 
held by Owners for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission. 



 - 40 - 
#8083890.1 

ARTICLE XIV 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 14.01. Changes to Ordinance. 

The Mayor and Director of Finance, in consultation with Bond Counsel, are hereby 
authorized to make changes to the terms of this Ordinance if necessary or desirable to carry out 
the purposes hereof or in connection with the approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the 
Attorney General of Texas. 

Section 14.02. Partial Invalidity. 

If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any reason be 
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, 
clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of the Ordinance. 

Section 14.03. No Personal Liability.   

No recourse shall be had for payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds or for 
any claim based thereon, or on this Ordinance, against any official or employee of the Town or 
any person executing any Bonds.  

ARTICLE XV 
 

EFFECTIVENESS 

Section 15.01. Effectiveness. 

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this August 10, 2021. 

 
 



   
Council Meeting 10.           
Meeting Date: 08/10/2021  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health
Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial

Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Authorizing the
Issuance of Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Taxable Series 2021; Awarding the Sale Thereof; Levying a Tax, and
Providing for the Security and Payment of Said Bonds; Authorizing the
Execution and Delivery of a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement and an
Escrow Agreement; Approving the Official Statement; Enacting Other
Provisions Relating to the Subject; and Declaring an Effective Date.   

BACKGROUND:
At the June 22, 2021, Council meeting, staff presented a plan to take advantage
of a favorable market environment to refund, i.e. refinance, the 2013 General
Obligation Bonds and 2013A General Obligation Bonds. Estimates provided at
the June 22, 2021, Council meeting were that the refunding would create
$296,770, or 7.43%, in Net Present Value savings over the remaining life of the
debt.  Additionally, staff mentioned that an increasingly favorable market
environment since the June 22nd agenda was posted would allow the Town to
also refund the 2013 Certificates of Obligation pushing total Net Present Value
savings over the remaining life of the debt to approximately $1,000,000.

Certain details concerning the General Obligation Taxable Refunding Bonds will
not be known until the completion of the sale on August 10, 2021.  This
information will be made available at the Council meeting on August 10, 2021,
prior to the discussion of this item.  The ordinance will be updated at the
meeting.  

The Town of Addison's AAA/Aaa bond ratings from Standard and Poor's and
Moody's were reaffirmed as part of this bond sale.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments



Ordinance - Authorization of 2021 General Obligation Taxable Refunding Bonds 



 
#8083978.1 
 

 

ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

relating to 

 

$__________________ 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 
TAXABLE SERIES 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted:  August 10, 2021 

 

  



 (i) 
#8083978.1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.01. Definitions................................................................................................................6 
Section 1.02. Findings....................................................................................................................8 
Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings ..................................................................9 
Section 1.04. Interpretation ............................................................................................................9 

ARTICLE II 
 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND 

Section 2.01. Payment of the Bonds ..............................................................................................9 
Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund ......................................................................................10 

ARTICLE III 
 

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 
REGARDING THE BONDS 

Section 3.01. Authorization .........................................................................................................10 
Section 3.02. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest ........................................................10 
Section 3.03. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment ...............................................................11 
Section 3.04. Execution and Registration of Bonds ....................................................................12 
Section 3.05. Ownership ..............................................................................................................13 
Section 3.06. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange ....................................................................13 
Section 3.07. Cancellation ...........................................................................................................14 
Section 3.08. Temporary Bonds ...................................................................................................14 
Section 3.09. Replacement Bonds ...............................................................................................14 
Section 3.10. Book-Entry-Only System.......................................................................................15 
Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only System .....16 
Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co .........................................................................................16 

ARTICLE IV 
 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.01. Limitation on Redemption .....................................................................................17 
Section 4.02. Optional Redemption .............................................................................................17 
Section 4.03. Reserved .................................................................................................................17 
Section 4.04. Partial Redemption.................................................................................................17 
Section 4.05. Notice of Redemption to Owners ..........................................................................18 
Section 4.06. Payment Upon Redemption ...................................................................................18 



 (ii) 
#8083978.1 

Section 4.07. Effect of Redemption .............................................................................................18 
Section 4.08. Conditional Notice of Redemption ........................................................................18 
Section 4.09. Lapse of Payment ...................................................................................................19 

ARTICLE V 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar .....................................................19 
Section 5.02. Qualifications .........................................................................................................19 
Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar .....................................................................19 
Section 5.04. Termination ............................................................................................................20 
Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners ..................................................................................20 
Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.........................................................20 
Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor ..........................................................................20 

ARTICLE VI 
 

FORM OF THE BONDS 

Section 6.01. Form Generally ......................................................................................................20 
Section 6.02. Form of the Bonds .................................................................................................21 
Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration ................................................................................................26 
Section 6.04. Legal Opinion ........................................................................................................27 
Section 6.05. Statement Insurance ...............................................................................................27 

ARTICLE VII 
 

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS;  
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS 

Section 7.01. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement ..........................................................................27 
Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds ..............................................................................28 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; 
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS 

Section 8.01. Creation of Funds ...................................................................................................28 
Section 8.02. Interest and Sinking Fund ......................................................................................28 
Section 8.03. Security of Funds ...................................................................................................29 
Section 8.04. Deposit of Proceeds ...............................................................................................29 
Section 8.05. Investments ............................................................................................................29 
Section 8.06. Investment Income .................................................................................................29 



 (iii) 
#8083978.1 

ARTICLE IX 
 

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds ............................................................................................30 
Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants ...................................................................30 

ARTICLE X 
 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 10.01. Events of Default ...................................................................................................30 
Section 10.02. Remedies for Default .............................................................................................30 
Section 10.03. Remedies Not Exclusive ........................................................................................31 

ARTICLE XI 
 

DISCHARGE 

Section 11.01. Discharge ...............................................................................................................31 

ARTICLE XII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 12.01. Annual Reports ......................................................................................................31 
Section 12.02. Material Event Notices ..........................................................................................32 
Section 12.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments ...........................................................33 

ARTICLE XIII 
 

AMENDMENTS 

Section 13.01. Amendments ..........................................................................................................35 

ARTICLE XIV 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 14.01. Changes to Ordinance ............................................................................................35 
Section 14.02. Partial Invalidity.....................................................................................................35 
Section 14.03. No Personal Liability .............................................................................................35 

ARTICLE XV 
 
 



 (iv) 
#8083978.1 

REDEMPTION OF REFUNDED BONDS; ESCROW AGREEMENT;  
PURCHASE OF SECURITIES 

Section 15.01. Payment of Paying Agent ......................................................................................36 
Section 15.02. Subscription for Securities .....................................................................................36 
Section 15.03. Escrow Agreement .................................................................................................36 
Section 15.04. Payment of Refunded Bonds; Redemption of Refunded Bonds ............................36 

ARTICLE XVI 
 

EFFECTIVENESS 

Section 16.01. Effectiveness ..........................................................................................................37 
 

 

Schedule of Refunded Bonds …………………………………………………………Schedule I



 - 5 - 
#8083978.1 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TOWN 
OF ADDISON, TEXAS, GENERAL OBLIGATION 
REFUNDING BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2021 IN THE 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $____________; 
AWARDING THE SALE THEREOF; LEVYING A TAX, AND 
PROVIDING FOR THE SECURITY FOR AND PAYMENT OF 
SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 
AGREEMENT AND AN ESCROW AGREEMENT; 
APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT; ENACTING 
OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT; AND 
DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, there are presently outstanding certain obligations of the Town of Addison, 
Texas (the “Town”), which are secured by and payable from ad valorem taxes levied on property 
within the Town in an amount sufficient to pay principal of and interest on such obligations as 
they become due within the limits prescribed by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Town now desires to refund such obligations described on Schedule I 
hereto (such refunded obligations to be hereinafter referred to as the “Refunded Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended (“Chapter 1207”) 
authorizes the Town to issue refunding bonds for the purpose of refunding or defeasing the 
Refunded Bonds in advance of their maturities, and to accomplish such refunding or defeasance 
by depositing directly with a paying agent for the Refunded Bonds (or other qualified escrow 
agent), the proceeds of such refunding bonds, together with other available funds, in an amount 
sufficient to provide for the payment or redemption of the Refunded Bonds, and provides that 
such deposit shall constitute the making of firm banking and financial arrangements for the 
discharge and final payment or redemption of the Refunded Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 1207 further authorizes the Town to enter into an escrow agreement 
with a commercial bank with respect to the safekeeping, investment, reinvestment, 
administration and disposition of any such deposit, upon such terms and conditions as the Town 
and such bank may agree, provided that such deposits may be invested and reinvested only in 
investments permitted under Chapter 1207 and the ordinances authorizing the Refunded Bonds, 
and which shall mature and bear interest payable at such times and in such amounts as will be 
sufficient to provide for the scheduled payment or prepayment of the Refunded Bonds;  

WHEREAS, the Town desires to authorize the execution of an escrow agreement in order 
to provide for the deposit of proceeds of the refunding bonds and, to the extent specified 
pursuant hereto, other lawfully available funds of the Town, to pay the redemption price of the 
Refunded Bonds when due; and 

WHEREAS, the Escrow Agreement hereinafter authorized constitutes an escrow 
agreement of the kind authorized and permitted by said Chapter 1207;  



 - 6 - 
#8083978.1 

WHEREAS, upon the issuance of the refunding bonds herein authorized and the deposit 
of funds referred to above, the Refunded Bonds shall no longer be regarded as being outstanding, 
except for the purpose of being paid pursuant to such deposit, and the pledges, liens, trusts and 
all other covenants, provisions, terms and conditions of the orders authorizing the issuance of the 
Refunded Bonds shall be, with respect to the Refunded Bonds, discharged, terminated 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that the issuance of the 
refunding bonds will result in a net present value debt service savings in the amount of 
$1,866,359.89 and that such savings and the refunding contemplated in this Ordinance will 
benefit the Town and that such benefit is sufficient consideration for the refunding of the 
Refunded Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the Town hereby finds and determines that the issuance 
and delivery of the bonds hereinafter authorized is in the public interest and the use of the 
proceeds in the manner herein specified constitutes a valid public purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has found and determined that it is necessary and in the 
best interests of the Town and its citizens that it issue such bonds authorized by this Ordinance; 
and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance is considered is open to the public as 
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as 
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.01. Definitions. 

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in 
this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below: 

“Bond” means any of the Bonds. 

“Bonds” means the bonds authorized to be issued by Section 3.01 of this Ordinance and 
designated as “Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 
2021. 

“Business Day” means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or other day on 
which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office is located 
are required or authorized by law or executive order to close. 

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Bonds. 



 - 7 - 
#8083978.1 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including applicable 
regulations, published rulings, and court decisions. 

“Delivery Date” means the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers and designated 
as the initial date of the Bonds by Section 3.02(a) of this Ordinance. 

“Designated Payment/Transfer Office” means (i) with respect to the initial Paying 
Agent/Registrar named herein, its office in Dallas, Texas, or at such other location designated by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar and (ii) with respect to any successor Paying Agent/Registrar, the 
office of such successor designated and located as may be agreed upon by the Town and such 
successor. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any 
successor securities depository. 

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities 
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants. 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System. 

“Escrow Agent” means the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. or any 
successor thereto. 

“Escrow Agreement” means the Escrow Agreement relating to the Bonds, by and 
between the Escrow Agent and the Town authorized in Article 14. 

“Escrow Fund” means the fund referred to in Section 14.3 of this Ordinance and 
established by the Escrow Agreement to hold cash and securities for the payment of principal 
and interest on the Refunded Bonds. 

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Section 10.01 of this 
Ordinance. 

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into 
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 
“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) 
has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

 
“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the City 

Council. 
 
“Initial Bond” means the initial bond authorized by Section 3.04(d) of this Ordinance. 
 
“Interest and Sinking Fund” means the interest and sinking fund established by 

Section 2.02 of this Ordinance. 



 - 8 - 
#8083978.1 

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates upon which interest on the Bonds is 
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity or prior redemption, such dates being 
February 15 and August 15 of each year commencing February 15, 2022. 

 
“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
“Ordinance” means this Ordinance. 
  
“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Bond or Bonds, as shown in 

the Register. 
 
“Paying Agent/Registrar” means initially The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 

Company, National Association, Dallas, Texas, or any successor thereto as provided in this 
Ordinance. 

 
“Purchaser(s)” means the initial purchaser(s) of the Bonds as set forth in Section 7.01. 

 
“Record Date” means the last Business Day of the month next preceding an Interest 

Payment Date. 
 
“Refunded Bonds” means those obligations of the Town set forth in Schedule I hereto. 
 
“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Ordinance. 
 
“Representations Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the Town 

and DTC. 
 
“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 
 
“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b). 
 
“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b). 

 
“Town” means the Town of Addison, Texas. 
 
“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 

payment of principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds as the same come 
due and payable or money set aside for the payment of Bonds duly called for redemption prior to 
maturity. 

 
Section 1.02. Findings. 

The declarations, determinations, and findings declared, made, and found in the preamble 
to this Ordinance are hereby adopted, restated, and made a part of the operative provisions 
hereof.  



 - 9 - 
#8083978.1 

Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings. 

The table of contents, titles, and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Ordinance 
have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof 
and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never 
be considered or given any effect in construing this Ordinance or any provision hereof or in 
ascertaining intent, if any question of intent should arise. 

Section 1.04. Interpretation. 

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be 
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and 
words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural 
number and vice versa. 

(b) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally 
construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein. 

ARTICLE II 
 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND 

Section 2.01. Payment of the Bonds. 

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and laws of the State 
of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each 
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Bonds or any interest thereon is outstanding and 
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the 
Town, at a rate sufficient, within the limit prescribed by law, to pay the debt service 
requirements of the Bonds, being (i) the interest on the Bonds, and (ii) a sinking fund for their 
redemption at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent per annum (whichever amount is the 
greater), when due and payable, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of 
collection. 

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against 
all property appearing on the tax rolls of the Town most recently approved in accordance with 
law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking 
Fund. 

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or 
required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and 
committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when and as 
due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 

(d) If the liens and provisions of this Ordinance shall be released in a manner 
permitted by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or 
appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking 
Fund may be suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.  In determining the 



 - 10 - 
#8083978.1 

aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bonds, there shall be subtracted the amount of any 
Bonds that have been duly called for redemption and for which money has been deposited with 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for such redemption. 

Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund. 

(a) The Town hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the 
“Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2021, Interest 
and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official 
depository bank of the Town separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the Town. 

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest 
and Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of 
the Bonds when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE III 
 

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 
REGARDING THE BONDS 

Section 3.01. Authorization. 

The Town’s bonds to be designated “Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2021” (the “Bonds”), are hereby authorized to be issued and 
delivered in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, specifically 
Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended.  The Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate 
principal amount of $____________ to provide funds to (i) refund the Refunded Bonds and (ii) 
pay of the costs of issuance of the Bonds. 

Section 3.02. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest. 

(a) The Bonds shall be dated August 1, 2021.  The Bonds shall be in fully registered 
form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall 
be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Bond, which shall be numbered T-1. 

(b) The Bonds shall mature on February 15 in the years and in the principal amounts 
set forth in the following schedule: 

Years 
Principal 
Amount Interest Rate Years 

Principal 
Amount Interest Rate 

2/15/2022   2/15/2027   
2/15/2023   2/15/2029   
2/15/2024   2/15/2031   
2/15/2025   2/15/2032   
2/15/2026   2/15/2033   

      



 - 11 - 
#8083978.1 

(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Bond respectively until its maturity or 
prior redemption from the later of the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser (the 
“Delivery Date”) or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or 
provided for at the rates per annum for each maturity specified in the schedule contained in 
subsection (b) above.  Such interest shall be payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15 
of each year commencing February 15, 2022, and shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day 
year of twelve 30-day months. 

Section 3.03. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment. 

(a) The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be 
paid in lawful money of the United States of America. 

(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at 
the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of nonpayment of 
interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for 
such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the 
Town.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due 
interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall 
be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first 
class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing on the Register at the 
close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment 
Date, and sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Owner, first class United States mail, 
postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner as it appears in the Register, or by such other 
customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Owner; 
provided, however, that the Owner shall bear all risk and expense of such alternative banking 
arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of the Bonds, 
interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on file with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

(d) The principal of each Bond shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date, 
whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof upon presentation and 
surrender of such Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a 
Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or 
authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next 
succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking 
institutions are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same 
force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall 
be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due 
and payable. 



 - 12 - 
#8083978.1 

(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in 
trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owners of the Bonds to 
which the Unclaimed Payments pertain.  Subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code, 
Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto for three years after 
the applicable payment or redemption date shall be applied to the next payment or payments on 
the Bonds thereafter coming due and, to the extent any such money remains after the retirement 
of all outstanding Bonds, shall be paid to the Town to be used for any lawful purpose.  
Thereafter, neither the Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, nor any other person shall be liable or 
responsible to any Owners of such Bonds for any further payment of such unclaimed moneys or 
on account of any such Bonds, subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code. 

Section 3.04. Execution and Registration of Bonds. 

(a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Town by the Mayor and the City 
Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the Town shall be 
impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the Bonds shall have the 
same effect as if each of the Bonds had been signed manually and in person by each of said 
officers, and such facsimile seal on the Bonds shall have the same effect as if the official seal of 
the Town had been manually impressed upon each of the Bonds. 

(b) In the event that any officer of the Town whose manual or facsimile signature 
appears on the Bonds ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before 
the delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient 
for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office. 

(c) Except as provided below, no Bonds shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose 
or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears thereon 
the certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly 
authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Bonds.  In 
lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial Bonds 
delivered at the Closing Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s Registration 
Certificate substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which Certificate shall be 
evidence that the Bond has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, 
that it is a valid and binding obligation of the Town, and that it has been registered by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

(d) On the Closing Date, one initial Bond (the “Initial Bond”) representing the entire 
principal amount of all Bonds, payable in stated installments to the initial purchaser, or its 
designee, executed by the Mayor and City Secretary of the Town, approved by the Attorney 
General, and registered and manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, will be 
delivered to the initial purchaser or its designee.  Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial Bond and deliver to DTC on behalf of the initial 
purchaser one registered definitive Bond for each year of maturity of the Bonds in the aggregate 



 - 13 - 
#8083978.1 

principal amount of all Bonds for such maturity, registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of DTC. 

Section 3.05. Ownership. 

(a) The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person 
in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of 
making and receiving payment as herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in 
whose name such Bond is registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable), 
and for all other purposes, whether or not such Bond is overdue, and neither the Town nor the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary. 

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall 
discharge the liability of the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the extent 
of the sums paid. 

Section 3.06. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange. 

(a) So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, the Town shall cause the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in 
which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall provide for the registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance with this Ordinance. 

(b) The ownership of a Bond may be transferred only upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar 
with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  No transfer of any Bond shall be effective until entered in the Register. 

(c) The Bonds shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at 
the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of 
the same maturity and interest rate and in a denomination or denominations of any integral 
multiple of $5,000, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of 
the Bonds presented for exchange.  The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby authorized to 
authenticate and deliver Bonds exchanged for other Bonds in accordance with this Section. 

(d) Each exchange Bond delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with 
this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to 
the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of 
which such exchange Bond is delivered. 

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration, 
subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Bonds.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or 
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the registration, 
transfer, or exchange of a Bond. 

(f) Neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, 
transfer or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 calendar 



 - 14 - 
#8083978.1 

days prior to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not be 
applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond. 

Section 3.07. Cancellation. 

All Bonds paid or redeemed before scheduled maturity in accordance with this 
Ordinance, and all Bonds in lieu of which exchange Bonds or replacement Bonds are 
authenticated and delivered in accordance with this Ordinance, shall be canceled and proper 
records made regarding such payment, redemption, exchange, or replacement.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall then return such canceled Bonds to the Town or may in accordance with 
law dispose of such cancelled Bonds. 

Section 3.08. Temporary Bonds. 

(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Bond and pending the 
preparation of definitive Bonds, the proper officers of the Town may execute and, upon the 
Town’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more 
temporary Bonds that are printed, lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed, or otherwise 
produced, in any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the definitive Bonds in lieu of which 
they are delivered, without coupons, and with such appropriate insertions, omissions, 
substitutions, and other variations as the officers of the Town executing such temporary Bonds 
may determine, as evidenced by their signing of such temporary Bonds. 

(b) Until exchanged for Bonds in definitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall 
be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance. 

(c) The Town, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar the Bonds in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Bond or Bonds in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Bonds in temporary form and shall authenticate and deliver in 
exchange therefor a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and series, in definitive form, in the 
authorized denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as the Bond or Bonds in 
temporary form surrendered.  Such exchange shall be made without the making of any charge 
therefor to any Owner. 

Section 3.09. Replacement Bonds. 

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated 
Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a 
replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously 
outstanding.  The Town or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner of such Bond to 
pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be 
imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith. 

(b) In the event that any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence 
of notice or knowledge that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall 
authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a 



 - 15 - 
#8083978.1 

number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first complies with the 
following requirements: 

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her 
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Bond; 

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to save it and the Town harmless; 

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not 
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or 
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and 

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the Town and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Bond, a bona fide purchaser of the 
original Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such 
original Bond, the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to recover such 
replacement Bond from the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking therefrom, 
except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity 
provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the Town or the 
Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith. 

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully 
taken Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its 
discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, may pay such Bond when it becomes due and 
payable. 

(e) Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute 
an original additional contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to the benefits and 
security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such 
replacement Bond is delivered. 

Section 3.10. Book-Entry-Only System. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, upon initial issuance of the Bond, the 
Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  The definitive Bonds 
shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate bond for each of the maturities thereof. 

(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, 
the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC 
Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the 
Bonds.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the Town and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the 
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in 
the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as 
shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of 



 - 16 - 
#8083978.1 

redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an 
Owner, as shown in the Register of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or 
interest on the Bonds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the 
Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose 
name each Bond is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose 
of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on Bonds, for the purpose of giving 
notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of registering 
transfer with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or 
upon the order of the respective Owners as shown in the Register, as provided in this Ordinance, 
or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and 
effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Town’s obligations with respect to payment of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person 
other than an Owner, as shown in the Register, shall receive a certificate evidencing the 
obligation of the Town to make payments of amounts due pursuant to this Ordinance.  Upon 
delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has 
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the word “Cede & Co.” in this 
Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

(c) The Representations Letter previously executed and delivered by the Town, and 
applicable to the Town’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities 
depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Bonds. 

Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only 
System. 

In the event that the Town or the Paying Agent/Registrar determines that DTC is 
incapable of discharging its responsibilities described herein and in the Representations Letter of 
the Town to DTC, and that it is in the best interest of the Town and the beneficial owners of the 
Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, or in the event DTC discontinues the 
services described herein, the Town shall (i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified 
to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 
notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such successor securities depository and 
transfer one or more separate Bonds to such successor securities depository; or (ii) notify DTC 
and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of certificated Bonds and cause the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate registered Bonds to DTC Participants having 
Bonds credited to their DTC accounts.  In such event, the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to 
being registered in the Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be 
registered in the name of the successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name 
or names Owners transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as the 
Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect 
to principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds, and all notices with respect to such 



 - 17 - 
#8083978.1 

Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representations 
Letter of the Town to DTC. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.01. Limitation on Redemption. 

The Bonds shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as provided in 
this Article IV.  

Section 4.02. Optional Redemption. 

(a) The Town reserves the option to redeem Bonds maturing on and after 
February 15, 2031 in whole or any part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on 
August 15, 2030 or on any date thereafter, such redemption date or dates to be fixed by the 
Town, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds called for redemption plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption. 

(b) If less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional 
redemption, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be 
redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot the Bonds, or portions 
thereof, within such maturity or maturities and in such principal amounts for redemption. 

(c) The Town, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period 
shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of 
such redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed. 

Section 4.03. Reserved. 

Section 4.04. Partial Redemption. 

(a) A portion of a single Bond of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be 
redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  If 
such a Bond is to be partially redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat each $5,000 
portion of the Bond as though it were a single Bond for purposes of selection for redemption. 

(b) Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange 
Bond in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Bond so 
surrendered, such exchange being without charge. 

(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the Town in writing of the 
principal amount to be redeemed of any Bond as to which only a portion thereof is to be 
redeemed. 



 - 18 - 
#8083978.1 

Section 4.05. Notice of Redemption to Owners. 

(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Bonds by 
sending notice by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the 
date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Bond (or part thereof) to be redeemed, at the 
address shown on the Register at the close of business on the Business Day next preceding the 
date of mailing such notice. 

(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at 
which the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Bonds outstanding 
are to be redeemed, an identification of the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed. 

(c) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to 
have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice. 

Section 4.06. Payment Upon Redemption. 

(a) Before or on each redemption date, the Town shall deposit with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Bonds to be redeemed on such date 
by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying Agent/Registrar 
from the Town and shall use such funds solely for the purpose of paying the principal of, 
redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on the Bonds being redeemed. 

(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Bond called for redemption at the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for 
redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of, redemption premium, if any, 
and accrued interest on such Bond to the date of redemption from the money set aside for such 
purpose. 

Section 4.07. Effect of Redemption. 

(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.05 of this 
Ordinance, the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on 
the date fixed for redemption and, unless the Town defaults in its obligation to make provision 
for the payment of the principal thereof, redemption premium, if any, or accrued interest thereon, 
such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to bear interest from and after the date fixed for 
redemption, whether or not such Bonds are presented and surrendered for payment on such date. 

(b) If the Town shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a 
redemption date, then any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear 
interest at the rate stated on the Bond until due provision is made for the payment of same by the 
Town. 

Section 4.08. Conditional Notice of Redemption. 

The Town reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds 
conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events. Such notice may state (i) that the 



 - 19 - 
#8083978.1 

redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount 
equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such 
other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the Town 
retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if 
the Town delivers a certificate of the Town to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and redemption shall be of no 
effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited or if the notice is 
rescinded. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such rescission of a 
conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any Bonds subject to conditional 
redemption and such redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding and the rescission 
of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a conditional 
notice of redemption, the failure of the Town to make moneys and or authorized securities 
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of 
default. 

Section 4.09. Lapse of Payment. 

Money set aside for the redemption of Bonds and remaining unclaimed by the Owners of 
such Bonds shall be subject to the provisions of Section 3.03(f) hereof. 

ARTICLE V 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar. 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association, Dallas, Texas, is 
hereby appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds. 

Section 5.02. Qualifications. 

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, a trust company organized 
under the laws of the State of Texas, or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve 
as and perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Bonds. 

Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(a) At all times while any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Town will maintain a 
Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance.  The Mayor is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement with the Paying Agent/Registrar 
specifying the duties and responsibilities of the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar in 
substantially the form presented at this meeting, such form of agreement being hereby approved.  
The signature of the Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary of the Town. 

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the 
Town will promptly appoint a replacement. 



 - 20 - 
#8083978.1 

Section 5.04. Termination. 

The Town, upon not less than sixty (60) days’ notice, reserves the right to terminate the 
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to 
be terminated written notice of such termination. 

Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners. 

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Town 
will cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner by first class United States mail, 
postage prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of the change 
and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions. 

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar and executing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement, the Paying Agent/Registrar is deemed to have agreed to the 
provisions of this Ordinance and that it will perform the duties and functions of Paying 
Agent/Registrar prescribed thereby. 

Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor. 

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the 
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent 
books and records relating to the Bonds to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar. 

ARTICLE VI 
 

FORM OF THE BONDS 

Section 6.01. Form Generally. 

(a) The Bonds, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas, the Bond of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Assignment 
form to appear on each of the Bonds, (i) shall be substantially in the form set forth in this Article, 
with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as are permitted 
or required by this Ordinance, and (ii) may have such letters, numbers, or other marks of 
identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on Uniform Securities 
Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such legends and 
endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as, consistently 
herewith, may be determined by the Town or by the officers executing such Bonds, as evidenced 
by their execution thereof. 

(b) Any portion of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse side thereof, 
with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bonds.  

(c) The definitive Bonds, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed, 
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or 



 - 21 - 
#8083978.1 

produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Bonds, as 
evidenced by their execution thereof. 

(d) The Initial Bond submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be 
typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.  

Section 6.02. Form of the Bonds. 

The form of the Bonds, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Bonds, shall be substantially as 
follows: 

(a) Form of Bond. 

REGISTERED 
No. _________ 

REGISTERED 
$_________ 

United States of America 
State of Texas 

County of Dallas 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND 
TAXABLE SERIES 2021 

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: DELIVERY DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 

______% February 15, ____ September 14, 2021 ______ ___ 

The Town of Addison (the “Town”), in the County of Dallas, State of Texas, for value 
received, hereby promises to pay to 

_____________________________ 

or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of 

_______________________ DOLLARS 

unless this Bond shall have been sooner called for redemption and the payment of the principal 
hereof shall have been provided for, and to pay interest on such principal amount from the later 
of Delivery Date specified above or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has 
been paid or provided for until payment of such principal amount has been provided for, at the 
per annum rate of interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months, such interest to be paid semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each 
year, commencing February 15, 2022. 

The principal of this Bond shall be payable without exchange or collection charges in 
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at 
the designated office in Dallas, Texas, of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 



 - 22 - 
#8083978.1 

National Association, as Paying Agent/Registrar (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”), or, 
with respect to a successor paying agent/registrar, at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of 
such successor Paying Agent/Registrar.  Interest on this Bond is payable by check dated as of the 
interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner 
at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar or by such 
other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the 
registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear all risk and expenses of 
such customary banking arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal 
amount of the Bonds, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on 
file with the Paying Agent/Registrar.  For the purpose of the payment of interest on this Bond, 
the registered owner shall be the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of 
business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the last business day of the month next preceding 
such interest payment date; provided, however, that in the event of nonpayment of interest on a 
scheduled payment date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment 
(a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds 
for the payment of such interest have been received from the Town.  Notice of the Special 
Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment 
Date,” which date shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five 
business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, 
to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at 
the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.   

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday, 
Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or authorized by 
law or executive order to close, the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day that is 
not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions are required or 
authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on 
the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of 
nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable. 

This Bond is dated August 1, 2021 and is one of a series of fully registered bonds 
specified in the title hereof issued in the aggregate principal amount of $_____________ (herein 
referred to as the “Bonds”), issued pursuant to a certain ordinance of the Town (the “Ordinance”) 
for the purpose of refunding a portion of the Town’s outstanding debt and to pay the costs and 
expenses associated with issuing the Bonds. 

The Town has reserved the option to redeem the Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 
2031, in whole or in part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on August 15, 2030, 
or on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds so called for 
redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  If less than all of the Bonds 
are to be redeemed, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof 
to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot or other customary 
method that results in a random selection the Bonds, or portions thereof, within such maturity 
and in such principal amounts, for redemption. 



 - 23 - 
#8083978.1 

Notice of such redemption or redemptions shall be given by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner of 
each of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part.  Notice having been so given, the Bonds or 
portions thereof designated for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date 
specified in such notice; from and after such date, notwithstanding that any of the Bonds or 
portions thereof so called for redemption shall not have been surrendered for payment, interest 
on such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to accrue.  

The Town reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds 
conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events. Such notice may state (i) that the 
redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount 
equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such 
other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the Town 
retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if 
the Town delivers a certificate of the Town to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and redemption shall be of no 
effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited or if the notice is 
rescinded. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such rescission of a 
conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any Bonds subject to conditional notice 
of redemption and such redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding and the 
rescission of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a 
conditional redemption, the failure of the Town to make moneys and or authorized securities 
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of 
default. 

As provided in the Ordinance, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this 
Bond is transferable upon surrender of this Town for transfer at the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence 
of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully 
registered Bonds of the same stated maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate 
of interest, and for the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the designated 
transferee or transferees. 

Neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or 
exchange any Bond called for redemption where such redemption is scheduled to occur within 
45 calendar days of the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not 
be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond. 

The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in 
whose name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as 
herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered 
on the Record Date, or the Special Record Date, as applicable) and for all other purposes, 
whether or not this Bond be overdue, and neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
be affected by notice to the contrary.  

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that the issuance of this Bond and the 
series of which it is a part is duly authorized by law, and has been authorized by a vote of the 



 - 24 - 
#8083978.1 

properly qualified electors of the Town; that all acts, conditions and things required to be done 
precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been properly done and performed and have 
happened in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; and that ad valorem 
taxes upon all taxable property in the Town have been levied for and pledged to the payment of 
the debt service requirements of the Bonds, within the limit prescribed by law; and that the total 
indebtedness of the Town, including the Bonds, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory 
limitation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town has caused this Bond to be executed by the manual 
or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the Town and countersigned by the manual or facsimile 
signature of the City Secretary, and the official seal of the Town has been duly impressed or 
placed in facsimile on this Bond.  

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Mayor, Town of Addison, Texas 
____________________________________ 
City Secretary, 
Town of Addison, Texas 
 
[SEAL] 



 - 25 - 
#8083978.1 

 
(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.  The following Comptroller’s 

Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive Bonds if such certificate on the Initial 
Bond is fully executed. 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER  § 
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS   § REGISTER NO. ____________ 
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney 
General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Bond has been examined by him as required 
by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the Town of Addison, Texas; and 
that this Bond has this day been registered by me. 

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, _____________________. 

 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 

(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar.  The following Certificate of 
Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from each Initial Bond if the Comptroller’s Registration 
Certificate appears thereon. 

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Bond of this series of 
Bonds was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the Bonds referred 
to in the within-mentioned Ordinance. 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON  
TRUST COMPANY,  
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

 as Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 
Dated:  ________________ By:  ________________________________  
  Authorized Signatory 
 



 - 26 - 
#8083978.1 

(d) Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto (print or 
typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee):   __________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other identifying number: ____________________) the within Bond and all 
rights hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints ____________________ 
attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration hereof, with full power of 
substitution in the premises.  

Dated: __________________ 

Signature Guaranteed By: 

____________________________________ 

____________________________________ 
Authorized Signatory 

____________________________________ 

NOTICE:  The Signature on this Assignment 
must correspond with the name of the 
registered owner as it appears on the face of 
the within Bond in every particular and must 
be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

 

(e) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in subsections (a) through (d) of this 
Section, except for the following alterations:  

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings “INTEREST 
RATE,” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown 
Below” and the words “CUSIP NO.” shall be deleted; 

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Bond, the words “on the Maturity Date 
specified above, the sum of ____________________ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and 
the following will be inserted: “on the fifteenth day of February in the years, in the 
principal installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates set forth in the 
following schedule:  

Year Principal Amount Interest Rate 

(Information to be inserted from Section 3.02(c) hereof). 

(iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered T-1. 

Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration. 

The Town may secure identification numbers through the CUSIP Service Bureau 
managed by S & P Global IQ behalf of the American Bankers Association, and may authorize 
the printing of such numbers on the face of the Bonds.  It is expressly provided, however, that 



 - 27 - 
#8083978.1 

the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall be of no significance or effect in 
regard to the legality thereof and neither the Town nor the attorneys approving said Bonds as to 
legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers incorrectly printed on the Bonds. 

Section 6.04. Legal Opinion. 

The approving legal opinion of Bracewell LLP, Bond Counsel, may be attached to or 
printed on the reverse side of each Bond over the certification of the City Secretary of the Town, 
which may be executed in facsimile. 

Section 6.05. Statement Insurance. 

A statement relating to a municipal bond insurance policy, if any, to be issued for the 
Bonds, may be printed on each Bond. 

ARTICLE VII 
 

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS;  
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS 

Section 7.01. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement. 

(a) The Bonds, having been duly advertised and offered for sale at competitive bid, 
are hereby officially sold and awarded to ______________ (the “Purchaser”) for a purchase 
price equal to the principal amount thereof, minus an original issue discount in the amount of 
$_____________, being the bid which produced the lowest true interest cost to the Town. The 
Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of the Purchaser or its designee. 

(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda, 
supplement or amendment thereto, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted and is hereby 
deemed final as of its date within the meaning and for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 
15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  The Mayor and City Secretary 
are hereby authorized and directed to cause to be prepared a final Official Statement (the 
“Official Statement”) incorporating applicable pricing information pertaining to the Bonds, and 
to execute the same by manual or facsimile signature and deliver appropriate numbers of 
executed copies thereof to the Purchaser.  The Official Statement as thus approved and delivered, 
with such appropriate variations as shall be approved by the Mayor and the Purchaser, may be 
used by the Purchaser in the public offering and sale thereof.  The City Secretary is hereby 
authorized and directed to include and maintain a copy of the Official Statement and any 
addenda, supplement or amendment thereto thus approved among the permanent records of this 
meeting.  The use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the preliminary 
public offering of the Bonds by the Purchaser, is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

(c) All officers of the Town are authorized to execute such documents, certificates 
and receipts as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Bonds in 
accordance with the terms of sale therefor.  Further, in connection with the submission of the 
record of proceedings for the Bonds to the Attorney General of the State of Texas for 
examination and approval of such Bonds, the appropriate officer of the Town is hereby 



 - 28 - 
#8083978.1 

authorized and directed to issue a check of the Town payable to the Attorney General of the State 
of Texas as a nonrefundable examination fee in the amount required by Chapter 1202, Texas 
Government Code (such amount per series to be the lesser of (i) 1/10th of 1% of the principal 
amount of such series of the Bonds or (ii) $9,500.) 

(d) The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds is subject to the 
Purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Bracewell LLP, bond counsel for 
the Town, which opinion shall be dated and delivered the Closing Date. 

Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds. 

(a) The Mayor of the Town is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond 
and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination, 
and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange or transfer by, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Bonds 
shall be made to the Purchaser or a representative thereof under and subject to the general 
supervision and direction of the Mayor, against receipt by the Town of all amounts due to the 
Town under the terms of sale. 

(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute 
any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City 
Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents and take such actions, and 
the performance of such duties by the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary shall for 
the purposes of this Ordinance have the same force and effect as if such duties were performed 
by the Mayor and City Secretary, respectively. 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; 
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS 

Section 8.01. Creation of Funds.   

(a) The Town hereby establishes the following special funds or accounts: 

(i) The Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
Taxable Series 2021, Interest and Sinking Fund  

(b) This fund or account shall be maintained at an official depository of the Town. 

Section 8.02. Interest and Sinking Fund.   

(a) The taxes levied under Section 2.01 shall be deposited to the credit of the Interest 
and Sinking Fund at such times and in such amounts as necessary for the timely payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds. 



 - 29 - 
#8083978.1 

(b) If the amount of money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is at least equal to the 
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds plus the aggregate amount of interest due 
and that will become due and payable on such Bonds, no further deposits to that fund need be 
made. 

(c) Money on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be used to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds as such become due and payable. 

Section 8.03. Security of Funds.   

All moneys on deposit in the funds referred to in this Ordinance shall be secured in the 
manner and to the fullest extent required by the laws of the State of Texas for the security of 
public funds, and moneys on deposit in such funds shall be used only for the purposes permitted 
by this Ordinance. 

Section 8.04. Deposit of Proceeds.   

(a) Proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of $_________________, shall be deposited 
to the Escrow Fund pursuant to the Escrow Agreement to refund the Refunded Bonds, and, to the 
extent not otherwise provided for, to pay all expenses arising in connection with the refunding of 
the Refunded Bonds. 

(b) The remaining proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited to a special fund, such 
moneys to be dedicated and used for paying the costs of issuance.  Any amounts remaining after 
the payment of the costs of issuance shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund. 

Section 8.05. Investments. 

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Ordinance, at the option 
of the Town, may be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law. 

(b) Any securities or obligations in which such money is so invested shall be kept and 
held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the proceeds of sale shall be 
timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from the fund from which the 
investment was made. 

Section 8.06. Investment Income. 

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund be 
credited to such fund. 

(b) Interest and income derived from investment of the funds to be deposited pursuant 
to Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the account where deposited until the acquisition or 
construction of said projects is completed and thereafter, to the extent such interest and income 
are present, such interest and income shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund. 



 - 30 - 
#8083978.1 

ARTICLE IX 
 

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds. 

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Bonds and while any of the Bonds are 
outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the 
Interest and Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such interest on and principal of, redemption 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest 
Payment Date, maturity date and, if applicable, on a date of prior redemption. 

Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants. 

(a) The Town will faithfully perform, at all times, any and all covenants, 
undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each Bond; the 
Town will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and 
interest on each Bond on the dates and at the places and manner prescribed in such Bond; and the 
Town will, at the times and in the manner prescribed by this Ordinance, deposit or cause to be 
deposited the amounts of money specified by this Ordinance. 

(b) The Town is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the 
Bonds; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly and 
effectively taken; and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and 
enforceable obligations of the Town in accordance with their terms. 

ARTICLE X 
 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 10.01. Events of Default. 

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an Event of Default: 

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if 
any, or interest on any of the Bonds when the same becomes due and payable; or 

(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, 
agreement, or obligation of the Town, which default materially and adversely affects the 
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in 
accordance with this Ordinance, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60) 
days after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the Town. 

Section 10.02. Remedies for Default. 

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized 
representative thereof, including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed 



 - 31 - 
#8083978.1 

against the Town for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under this 
Ordinance by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law in any 
court of competent jurisdiction for any relief permitted by law, including the specific 
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing 
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of 
such remedies. 

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the 
equal benefit of all Owners of Bonds then outstanding. 

Section 10.03. Remedies Not Exclusive. 

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other 
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to 
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds or now or hereafter existing at law or in 
equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the right 
to accelerate the debt evidenced by the Bonds shall not be available as a remedy under this 
Ordinance. 

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a 
waiver of any other available remedy. 

ARTICLE XI 
 

DISCHARGE 

Section 11.01. Discharge. 

The Bonds may be defeased, discharged or refunded in any manner permitted by 
applicable law. 

ARTICLE XII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 12.01. Annual Reports. 

(a) The Town shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six months after the 
end of each fiscal year of the Town, financial information and operating data with respect to the 
Town of the general type included in the final Official Statement, being information described in 
the Tables numbered 1 through 6 and 8 through 15, including financial statements of the Town if 
audited financial statements of the Town are then available, and (2) if not provided as part such 
financial information and operating data, audited financial statements of the Town, when and if 
available.  Any financial statements to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance with the 
accounting principles appended to the Official Statement, or such other accounting principles as 
the Town may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and 
(ii) audited, if the Town commissions an audit of such financial statements and the audit is 
completed within the period during which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial 



 - 32 - 
#8083978.1 

statements is not complete within 12 months after any such fiscal year end, then the Town shall 
file unaudited financial statements within such 12-month period and audited financial statements 
for the applicable fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such statements becomes available. 

(b) If the Town changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of 
the date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Town otherwise would be 
required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this 
Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific 
referenced to any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is 
available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the 
SEC. 

Section 12.02. Material Event Notices. 

(a) The Town shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) 
Business Days after the occurrence of the event, of any of the following events with respect to 
the Bonds: 

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(iii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(iv) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(vi) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 
5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(vii) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material; 

(viii) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(ix) Defeasances; 

(x) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, 
if material; 

(xi) Rating changes; 

(xii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Town; 



 - 33 - 
#8083978.1 

(xiii) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 
Town or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Town, other than in the 
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an 
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than 
pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

(xiv) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar or change in the name 
of the Paying Agent/Registrar, if material. 

(xv) incurrence of a financial obligation of the Town, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
financial obligation of the Town, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 

(xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which 
reflect financial difficulties.   

For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding clause (xii) is 
considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 
or similar officer for the Town in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in 
any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has 
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Town, or if such 
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in 
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets of 
business of the Town; and the Town intends the words used in the immediately preceding 
paragraphs (xv) and (xvi) and the definition of financial obligations in those sections to have the 
same meanings as when they are used in rule and sec release no. 34-83885, dated August 20, 
2018.   

(b) The Town shall provide to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the 
MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of a failure by the Town to provide required annual financial 
information and notices of material events in accordance with Sections 12.01 and 12.02.  All 
documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Section shall be accompanied by identifying 
information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

Section 12.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments. 

(a) The Town shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in 
this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the Town remains an “obligated person” with 
respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the Town in any event will give 
notice of any redemption calls and any defeasances that cause the Town to be no longer an 
“obligated person.” 

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial 
owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any 
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The Town undertakes 



 - 34 - 
#8083978.1 

to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which 
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to 
provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the 
Town’s financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information 
provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The 
Town does not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its 
usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE TOWN BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR 
BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR 
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY 
THE TOWN, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY 
COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF 
ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH 
BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC 
PERFORMANCE. 

(c) No default by the Town in observing or performing its obligations under this 
Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise 
limit the duties of the Town under federal and state securities laws. 

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Town from time to time to 
adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, 
or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Town, but only if (i) the 
provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or 
sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account 
any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such 
changed circumstances, and (ii) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal 
amount (or any greater amount required by any other provisions of this Ordinance that authorizes 
such an amendment) of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (B) an entity or 
individual person that is unaffiliated with the Town (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) 
determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Owners and 
beneficial owners of the Bonds.  If the Town so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall 
include with any amended financial information or operating data next provided in accordance 
with Section 12.01 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of 
the impact of any change in type of financial information or operating data so provide. 



 - 35 - 
#8083978.1 

ARTICLE XIII 
 

AMENDMENTS 

Section 13.01. Amendments. 

This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Owners, be binding on the Town, and 
shall not be amended or repealed by the Town so long as any Bond remains outstanding except 
as permitted in this Section.  The Town may, without consent of or notice to any Owners, from 
time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests 
of the Owners, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or 
omission herein.  In addition, the Town may, with the written consent of the Owners of the 
Bonds holding a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, amend, 
add to, or rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of 
all Owners of outstanding Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (i) extend the 
time or times of payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, reduce the principal 
amount thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify 
the terms of payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds, (ii) give any preference to any 
Bond over any other Bond, or (iii) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required to be 
held by Owners for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission. 

ARTICLE XIV 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 14.01. Changes to Ordinance. 

The Mayor and Director of Finance, in consultation with Bond Counsel, are hereby 
authorized to make changes to the terms of this Ordinance if necessary or desirable to carry out 
the purposes hereof or in connection with the approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the 
Attorney General of Texas. 

Section 14.02. Partial Invalidity. 

If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any reason be 
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, 
clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of the Ordinance. 

Section 14.03. No Personal Liability.   

No recourse shall be had for payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds or for 
any claim based thereon, or on this Ordinance, against any official or employee of the Town or 
any person executing any Bonds.  



 - 36 - 
#8083978.1 

 

ARTICLE XV 

REDEMPTION OF REFUNDED BONDS; ESCROW AGREEMENT;  
PURCHASE OF SECURITIES 

Section 15.01. Payment of Paying Agent. 

Prior to the Closing Date, the Town shall ascertain from the paying agent for the 
Refunded Bonds the amount of all future fees and expenses for its paying agent services with 
respect to the Refunded Bonds.  Concurrently with the sale and delivery of the Bonds, the Town 
shall cause an amount sufficient to pay such future fees and expenses to be paid to each such 
paying agent. 

Section 15.02. Subscription for Securities.  The Mayor and Director of Finance are 
authorized to make necessary arrangements for and to execute such documents and agreements 
in connection with the purchase of the Authorized Securities required by and referenced in the 
Escrow Agreement, if any, as may be necessary for the Escrow Fund and the application for the 
acquisition of the Authorized Securities is hereby approved and ratified. 

Section 15.03. Escrow Agreement. 

The Escrow Agreement, in substantially the form presented at this meeting, and its 
execution and delivery by the Mayor is hereby authorized and approved.  The signature of the 
Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary. 

Section 15.04. Payment of Refunded Bonds; Redemption of Refunded Bonds.  Following 
the deposit to the Escrow Fund as herein specified, the Refunded Bonds shall be payable solely 
from and secured by the cash and securities on deposit in the Escrow Fund for the purpose of 
refunding the Refunded Bonds and shall cease to be payable from ad valorem taxes, and firm 
banking and financial arrangements shall have been made for the discharge and final payment or 
redemption of the Refunded Bonds pursuant to Chapter 1207.  The Refunded Bonds are hereby 
called for redemption prior to maturity on the dates and at the redemption prices set forth in the 
Schedule I attached hereto.  The City Secretary hereby authorized and directed to cause to be 
delivered to the paying agent/registrar for the Refunded Bonds a certified copy of this Ordinance 
calling the Refunded Bonds for redemption.  The delivery of this Ordinance to the paying agent 
for the Refunded Bonds shall constitute the giving of notice of redemption to the paying agent 
for the Refunded Bonds and such paying agent is hereby authorized and directed to give notice 
of redemption to the owners of the Refunded Bonds in accordance with the requirements of the 
ordinance authorizing the issuance thereof. 



 - 37 - 
#8083978.1 

ARTICLE XVI 
 

EFFECTIVENESS 

Section 16.01. Effectiveness. 

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this August 10, 2021. 

 



 
#8083978.1 
 

SCHEDULE OF REFUNDED OBLIGATIONS 

General Obligation Bonds, Tax-Exempt Series 2013 

Original  
Dated Date 

Original 
Maturity Interest Rate 

Principal 
Amount 

Outstanding 

Principal 
Amount 

Refunded 

7/15/2013 2/15/2024 5.000% $ 230,000 $ 230,000 
 2/15/2025 5.000% 240,000 240,000 
 2/15/2026 5.000% 255,000 255,000 
 2/15/2027 5.000% 265,000 265,000 
 2/15/2028 5.000% 280,000 280,000 
 2/15/2029 4.100% 295,000 295,000 
 2/15/2030 4.150% 305,000 305,000 
 2/15/2031 4.250% 320,000 320,000 
 2/15/2032 4.300% 330,000 330,000 
 2/15/2033 4.375% 345,000 345,000 
   $ 2,865,000 $ 2,865,000 

The 2024 – 2033 maturities will be redeemed prior to original maturity on February 15, 2023 at par. 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A (AMT) 

Original  
Dated Date 

Original 
Maturity Interest Rate 

Principal 
Amount 

Outstanding 

Principal 
Amount 

Refunded 

7/15/2013 2/15/2024 (1) 4.250% $ 90,000 $ 90,000 
 2/15/2025 (1) 4.250% 95,000 95,000 
 2/15/2026 (1) 4.250% 100,000 100,000 
 2/15/2027 (1) 4.250% 105,000 105,000 
 2/15/2028 (1) 4.250% 110,000 110,000 
 2/15/2029 (2) 4.800% 115,000 115,000 
 2/15/2030 (2) 4.800% 120,000 120,000 
 2/15/2031 (2) 4.800% 125,000 125,000 
 2/15/2032 (2) 4.800% 130,000 130,000 
 2/15/2033 (2) 4.800% 140,000 140,000 
   $ 1,130,000 $ 1,130,000 

The 2024 – 2033 maturities will be redeemed prior to original maturity on February 15, 2023 at par. 

(1) Represent mandatory sinking fund installments of a Term Bond with a final maturity of February 15, 2028. 
(2) Represent mandatory sinking fund installments of a Term Bond with a final maturity of February 15, 2033. 
 



-39- 

 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013 

Original  
Dated Date 

Original 
Maturity Interest Rate 

Principal 
Amount 

Outstanding 

Principal 
Amount 

Refunded 

7/15/2013 2/15/2024 (1) 5.000% $ 490,000 $ 490,000 
 2/15/2025 (1) 5.000% 515,000 515,000 
 2/15/2026 (1) 5.000% 545,000 545,000 
 2/15/2027 (1) 5.000% 575,000 575,000 
 2/15/2028 (1) 5.000% 600,000 600,000 
 2/15/2029 (1) 4.100% 630,000 630,000 
 2/15/2030 (1) 4.150% 655,000 655,000 
 2/15/2031 (1) 4.250% 685,000 685,000 
 2/15/2032 (1) 4.300% 715,000 715,000 
 2/15/2033 (1) 4.375% 750,000 750,000 
   $ 6,160,000 $ 6,160,000 

The 2024 – 2033 maturities will be redeemed prior to original maturity on February 15, 2023 at par. 

 
 


	Agenda
	AI_3980_Minutes - June 17, 2021 Joint Meeting
	    Minutes - June 17, 2021
	AI_4002_Minutes - July 13, 2021
	    Minutes - July 13, 2021
	AI_3996_Consider Action on a Resolution Establishing the Town's Intent to Reimburse Prior Lawful Expenditures 
	    Resolution - Reimbursement for Propositions C and D
	RESOLUTION NO. R21-
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS THAT:
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	AI_4010_Tyton Holdings
	    Resolution - Tyton Holdings
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	AI_3985_Purchase agreement with Simon Roofing for roof replacement at 4308 Wiley Post at Addison Airport.
	    Resolution - 4308 Wiley Post Roof Agreement
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	    4308 Wiley Post Roof Image
	AI_4011_Case 1830-Z_4551 Beltway Drive
	    1830-Z Ordinance
	    1830-Z Presentation
	    1830-Z Staff Report
	1830-Z P & Z Packet
	1830-Z Map
	1830-Z Staff Report

	1830-Z Commission Findings

	    1830-Z Zoning Exhibit
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION
	4551 Beltway Drive NEW SURVEY 2020

	AI_4012_Meritorious Exception - Bowlero_3805 Belt Line Road
	    MR2021-007 Ordinance
	    MR2021-007 Presentation
	AI_3997_Present, Discuss, and Consider Approval Of A Resolution Professional Services Agreement With BKD, LLP 
	    Resolution - External Financial Audit
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	AI_4016_Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021
	    Ordinance - Authorization of 2021 General Obligation Bonds
	ARTICLE I   DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	Section 1.01. Definitions.
	Section 1.02. Findings.
	Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings.
	Section 1.04. Interpretation.
	(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative word...
	(b) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein.


	ARTICLE II   SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND
	Section 2.01. Payment of the Bonds.
	(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each succeeding year thereafter while any of the Bonds or any interest thereo...
	(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against all property appearing on the tax rolls of the Town most recently approved in accordance with law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the...
	(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the B...
	(d) If the liens and provisions of this Ordinance shall be released in a manner permitted by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the ...

	Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund.
	(a) The Town hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the “Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021, Interest and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official depos...
	(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the Bonds when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms...


	ARTICLE III   AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS REGARDING THE BONDS
	Section 3.01. Authorization.
	Section 3.02. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest.
	(a) The Bonds shall be dated August 1, 2021.  The Bonds shall be in fully registered form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Bond, which...
	(b) The Bonds shall mature on February 15 in the years and in the principal amounts set forth in the following schedule:
	(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Bond respectively until its maturity or prior redemption from the later of the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser (the “Delivery Date”) or the most recent interest payment date to which interes...

	Section 3.03. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment.
	(a) The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be paid in lawful money of the United States of America.
	(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days thereafter, a...
	(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment Date, and sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Owner, first class United States mail, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner as it appears in the Register...
	(d) The principal of each Bond shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date, whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof upon presentation and surrender of such Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Payin...
	(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the paying Agent/Registrar is loc...
	(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owners of the Bonds to which the Unclaimed Payments pertain.  Subject to Title 6 of the Texas Pr...

	Section 3.04. Execution and Registration of Bonds.
	(a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Town by the Mayor and the City Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the Town shall be impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the ...
	(b) In the event that any officer of the Town whose manual or facsimile signature appears on the Bonds ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before the delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless sh...
	(c) Except as provided below, no Bonds shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears thereon the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form ...
	(d) On the Closing Date, one initial Bond (the “Initial Bond”) representing the entire principal amount of all Bonds, payable in stated installments to the initial purchaser, or its designee, executed by the Mayor and City Secretary of the Town, appro...

	Section 3.05. Ownership.
	(a) The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of making and receiving payment as herein provided (except interest shall be pa...
	(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall discharge the liability of the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the extent of the sums paid.

	Section 3.06. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange.
	(a) So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, the Town shall cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying...
	(b) The ownership of a Bond may be transferred only upon the presentation and surrender of the Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Pay...
	(c) The Bonds shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and interest rate and in a denomination or denominations o...
	(d) Each exchange Bond delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as t...
	(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration, subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Bonds.  The Paying Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to co...
	(f) Neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 calendar days prior to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitatio...

	Section 3.07. Cancellation.
	Section 3.08. Temporary Bonds.
	(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Bond and pending the preparation of definitive Bonds, the proper officers of the Town may execute and, upon the Town’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one o...
	(b) Until exchanged for Bonds in definitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance.
	(c) The Town, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the Paying Agent/Registrar the Bonds in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and surrender of the Bond or Bonds in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registra...

	Section 3.09. Replacement Bonds.
	(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not conte...
	(b) In the event that any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence of notice or knowledge that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fi...
	(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Bond;
	(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying Agent/Registrar to save it and the Town harmless;
	(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and
	(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar.

	(c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Bond, a bona fide purchaser of the original Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such original Bond, the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to rec...
	(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully taken Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, may pay such Bond wh...
	(e) Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds...

	Section 3.10. Book-Entry-Only System.
	(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, upon initial issuance of the Bond, the Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  The definitive Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate bond for ea...
	(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant hold...
	(c) The Representations Letter previously executed and delivered by the Town, and applicable to the Town’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Bonds.

	Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only System.
	Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co.

	ARTICLE IV   REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY
	Section 4.01. Limitation on Redemption.
	Section 4.02. Optional Redemption.
	(a) The Town reserves the option to redeem Bonds maturing on and after February 15, 2031 in whole or any part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on August 15, 2030 or on any date thereafter, such redemption date or dates to be fixed by...
	(b) If less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional redemption, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot the Bonds, o...
	(c) The Town, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of such redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed.

	Section 4.03. Reserved.
	Section 4.04. Partial Redemption.
	(a) A portion of a single Bond of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  If such a Bond is to be partially redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat ...
	(b) Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of ...
	(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the Town in writing of the principal amount to be redeemed of any Bond as to which only a portion thereof is to be redeemed.

	Section 4.05. Notice of Redemption to Owners.
	(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Bonds by sending notice by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Bond (or part thereof) t...
	(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at which the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Bonds outstanding are to be redeemed, an identification of the Bonds or portions thereof to...
	(c) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice.

	Section 4.06. Payment Upon Redemption.
	(a) Before or on each redemption date, the Town shall deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Bonds to be redeeme...
	(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Bond called for redemption at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of, redemption ...

	Section 4.07. Effect of Redemption.
	(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.05 of this Ordinance, the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption and, unless the Town defaults in its obligation...
	(b) If the Town shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a redemption date, then any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear interest at the rate stated on the Bond until due provision is made for the pa...

	Section 4.08. Conditional Notice of Redemption.
	Section 4.09. Lapse of Payment.

	ARTICLE V   PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR
	Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.
	Section 5.02. Qualifications.
	Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.
	(a) At all times while any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Town will maintain a Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance.  The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement with the Paying Agent...
	(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the Town will promptly appoint a replacement.

	Section 5.04. Termination.
	Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners.
	Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.
	Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor.

	ARTICLE VI   FORM OF THE BONDS
	Section 6.01. Form Generally.
	(a) The Bonds, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Bond of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Assignment form to appear on each of the Bonds, (i) shall be substantially in the form s...
	(b) Any portion of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse side thereof, with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bonds.
	(c) The definitive Bonds, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed, lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such ...
	(d) The Initial Bond submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.

	Section 6.02. Form of the Bonds.
	(a)  Form of Bond.
	(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.  The following Comptroller’s Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive Bonds if such certificate on the Initial Bond is fully executed.
	(c)  Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar.  The following Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from each Initial Bond if the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate appears thereon.
	(d) Form of Assignment.
	(e)  The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in subsections (a) through (d) of this Section, except for the following alterations:
	(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings “INTEREST RATE,” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown Below” and the words “CUSIP NO.” shall be deleted;
	(ii) in the first paragraph of the Bond, the words “on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of ____________________ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and the following will be inserted: “on the fifteenth day of February in the years, in the principal in...
	(iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered T-1.


	Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration.
	Section 6.04. Legal Opinion.
	Section 6.05. Statement Insurance.

	ARTICLE VII   SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS;  DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS
	Section 7.01. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement.
	(a) The Bonds, having been duly advertised and offered for sale at competitive bid, are hereby officially sold and awarded to ____________________ (the “Purchaser”) for a purchase price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus a cash premium in the...
	(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted and is hereby deemed final as of its date within the meaning and for the purposes of par...
	(c) All officers of the Town are authorized to execute such documents, certificates and receipts as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Bonds in accordance with the terms of sale therefor.  Further, in connection with ...
	(d) The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds is subject to the Purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Bracewell LLP, bond counsel for the Town, which opinion shall be dated and delivered the Closing Date.

	Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds.
	(a) The Mayor of the Town is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination, and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registratio...
	(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Bonds shall be made to the Purchaser or a representative thereof under and subject to the general supervision and direction of the Mayor, against receipt by the Town of all ...
	(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents an...

	Section 7.03. Deposit of Proceeds.
	(a) The proceeds of the Bonds received on the Closing Date, shall be deposited to a special account of the Town, such moneys to be dedicated and used solely for the purposes for which the Bonds are being issued as herein provided in Section 3.01.  To ...


	ARTICLE VIII   CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS
	Section 8.01. Creation of Funds.
	(a) The Town hereby establishes the following special funds or accounts:
	(i) The Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021, Interest and Sinking Fund; and
	(ii) The Town of Addison, Texas General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021 Construction Fund.

	(b) These funds or accounts shall be maintained at an official depository of the Town.

	Section 8.02. Interest and Sinking Fund.
	(a) The taxes levied under Section 2.01 shall be deposited to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund at such times and in such amounts as necessary for the timely payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds.
	(b) If the amount of money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is at least equal to the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds plus the aggregate amount of interest due and that will become due and payable on such Bonds, no further deposits ...
	(c) Money on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be used to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as such become due and payable.
	Section 8.03. Construction Fund.

	(b) All amounts remaining in the Construction Fund after the accomplishment of the purposes for which the Bonds are hereby issued, including investment earnings of the Construction Fund, shall be deposited into the Interest and Sinking Fund.

	Section 8.04. Security of Funds.
	Section 8.05. Deposit of Proceeds.
	(a) Proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of $_____________, (including premium received on the Bonds in the amount of $_____________ allocated to voted authorization), shall be deposited to the Construction Fund.
	(b) Premium generated on the Bonds in the amount of $_____________ shall be deposited to a special fund, such moneys to be dedicated and used for paying the costs of issuance.  Any amounts remaining after the payment of the costs of issuance shall be ...

	Section 8.06. Investments.
	(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Ordinance, at the option of the Town, may be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law.
	(b) Any securities or obligations in which such money is so invested shall be kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the proceeds of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made fro...

	Section 8.07. Investment Income.
	(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund be credited to such fund.
	(b) Interest and income derived from investment of the funds to be deposited pursuant to Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the account where deposited until the acquisition or construction of said projects is completed and thereafter, to the...


	ARTICLE IX   PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS
	Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds.
	Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants.
	(a) The Town will faithfully perform, at all times, any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each Bond; the Town will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premium, if...
	(b) The Town is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the Bonds; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly and effectively taken; and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and wi...

	Section 9.03. Federal Income Tax Matters.
	(a) General.  The Town covenants not to take any action or omit to take any action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the interest on the Bonds to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the Town cove...
	(b) No Private Activity Bonds.  The Town covenants that it will use the proceeds of the Bonds (including investment income) and the property financed, directly or indirectly, with such proceeds so that the Bonds will not be “private activity bonds” wi...
	(c) No Federal Guarantee.  The Town covenants not to take any action or omit to take any action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code, except as permitted by sect...
	(d) No Hedge Bonds. The Town covenants not to take any action or omit to take action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Bonds to be “hedge bonds” within the meaning of section 149(g) of the Code.
	(e) No Arbitrage Bonds.  The Town covenants that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Bonds (including investment income) and regulate the investment of such proceeds of the Bonds so that the Bonds will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the mean...
	(f) Required Rebate.  The Town covenants that, if the Town does not qualify for an exception to the requirements of section 148(f) of the Code, the Town will comply with the requirement that certain amounts earned by the Town on the investment of the ...
	(g) Information Reporting.  The Town covenants to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the Treasury an information statement concerning the Bonds in accordance with section 149(e) of the Code.
	(h) Record Retention.  The Town covenants to retain all material records relating to the expenditure of the proceeds (including investment income) of the Bonds and the use of the property financed, directly or indirectly, thereby until three years aft...
	(i) Registration.  If the Bonds are “registration-required bonds” under section 149(a)(2) of the Code, the Bonds will be issued in registered form.
	(j) Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Town will not be required to comply with any of the federal tax covenants set forth above if the Town has received an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that such no...
	(k) Continuing Compliance.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the Town’s obligations under the federal tax covenants set forth above will survive the defeasance and discharge of the Bonds for as long as such matters are relevant t...
	(l) Official Intent.  For purposes of section 1.150-2(d) of the Regulations, to the extent that an official intent to reimburse has not previously been adopted by the Town, this Ordinance serves as the Town’s official declaration of intent to use proc...

	Section 9.04. No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing.
	Section 9.05. No Federal Guaranty.
	Section 9.06. No Hedge Bonds.
	Section 9.07. No Arbitrage.
	Section 9.08. Arbitrage Rebate.
	Section 9.09. Information Reporting.
	Section 9.10. Record Retention.
	Section 9.11. Registration.
	Section 9.12. Deliberate Actions.
	Section 9.13. Continuing Obligation.

	ARTICLE X   DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
	Section 10.01. Events of Default.
	(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on any of the Bonds when the same becomes due and payable; or
	(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, agreement, or obligation of the Town, which default materially and adversely affects the rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in ...

	Section 10.02. Remedies for Default.
	(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized representative thereof, including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed against the Town for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of...
	(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the equal benefit of all Owners of Bonds then outstanding.

	Section 10.03. Remedies Not Exclusive.
	(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds or now or hereaf...
	(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a waiver of any other available remedy.


	ARTICLE XI   DISCHARGE
	Section 11.01. Discharge.

	ARTICLE XII   CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING
	Section 12.01. Annual Reports.
	(a) The Town shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six months after the end of each fiscal year of the Town, financial information and operating data with respect to the Town of the general type included in the final Official Statement, being...
	(b) If the Town changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Town otherwise would be required to provide financial information and operating data pursua...
	(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific referenced to any document (including an official statement or other offering doc...

	Section 12.02. Material Event Notices.
	(a) The Town shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) Business Days after the occurrence of the event, of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:
	(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
	(ii) Non-payment related defaults, if material;
	(iii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
	(iv) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
	(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
	(vi) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the ...
	(vii) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material;
	(viii) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;
	(ix) Defeasances;
	(x) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;
	(xi) Rating changes;
	(xii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Town;
	(xiii) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Town or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Town, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake ...
	(xiv) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar or change in the name of the Paying Agent/Registrar, if material.
	(xv) incurrence of a financial obligation of the Town, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which affect security holders, if materia...
	(xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

	For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding clause (xii) is considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or similar officer for the Town in a proceeding under the United St...
	(b) The Town shall provide to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of a failure by the Town to provide required annual financial information and notices of material events in accordance with Sections ...

	Section 12.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.
	(a) The Town shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the Town remains an “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the To...
	(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any ot...
	(c) No default by the Town in observing or performing its obligations under this Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other provisions of this Ordinance.
	(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the duties of the Town under federal and state securities laws.
	(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Town from time to time to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of th...


	ARTICLE XIII   AMENDMENTS
	Section 13.01. Amendments.

	ARTICLE XIV   MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 14.01. Changes to Ordinance.
	Section 14.02. Partial Invalidity.
	Section 14.03. No Personal Liability.

	ARTICLE XV   EFFECTIVENESS
	Section 15.01. Effectiveness.


	AI_4017_Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2021.
	    Ordinance - Authorization of 2021 General Obligation Taxable Refunding Bonds
	ARTICLE I   DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	Section 1.01. Definitions.
	Section 1.02. Findings.
	Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings.
	Section 1.04. Interpretation.
	(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative word...
	(b) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein.


	ARTICLE II   SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND
	Section 2.01. Payment of the Bonds.
	(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each succeeding year thereafter while any of the Bonds or any interest thereo...
	(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against all property appearing on the tax rolls of the Town most recently approved in accordance with law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the...
	(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the B...
	(d) If the liens and provisions of this Ordinance shall be released in a manner permitted by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the ...

	Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund.
	(a) The Town hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the “Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2021, Interest and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at...
	(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the Bonds when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms...


	ARTICLE III   AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS REGARDING THE BONDS
	Section 3.01. Authorization.
	Section 3.02. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest.
	(a) The Bonds shall be dated August 1, 2021.  The Bonds shall be in fully registered form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Bond, which...
	(b) The Bonds shall mature on February 15 in the years and in the principal amounts set forth in the following schedule:
	(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Bond respectively until its maturity or prior redemption from the later of the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser (the “Delivery Date”) or the most recent interest payment date to which interes...

	Section 3.03. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment.
	(a) The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be paid in lawful money of the United States of America.
	(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days thereafter, a...
	(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment Date, and sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Owner, first class United States mail, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner as it appears in the Register...
	(d) The principal of each Bond shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date, whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof upon presentation and surrender of such Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Payin...
	(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the paying Agent/Registrar is loc...
	(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owners of the Bonds to which the Unclaimed Payments pertain.  Subject to Title 6 of the Texas Pr...

	Section 3.04. Execution and Registration of Bonds.
	(a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Town by the Mayor and the City Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the Town shall be impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the ...
	(b) In the event that any officer of the Town whose manual or facsimile signature appears on the Bonds ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before the delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless sh...
	(c) Except as provided below, no Bonds shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears thereon the certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form ...
	(d) On the Closing Date, one initial Bond (the “Initial Bond”) representing the entire principal amount of all Bonds, payable in stated installments to the initial purchaser, or its designee, executed by the Mayor and City Secretary of the Town, appro...

	Section 3.05. Ownership.
	(a) The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of making and receiving payment as herein provided (except interest shall be pa...
	(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall discharge the liability of the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the extent of the sums paid.

	Section 3.06. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange.
	(a) So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, the Town shall cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying...
	(b) The ownership of a Bond may be transferred only upon the presentation and surrender of the Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Pay...
	(c) The Bonds shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and interest rate and in a denomination or denominations o...
	(d) Each exchange Bond delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as t...
	(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration, subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Bonds.  The Paying Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to co...
	(f) Neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 calendar days prior to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitatio...

	Section 3.07. Cancellation.
	Section 3.08. Temporary Bonds.
	(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Bond and pending the preparation of definitive Bonds, the proper officers of the Town may execute and, upon the Town’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one o...
	(b) Until exchanged for Bonds in definitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance.
	(c) The Town, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the Paying Agent/Registrar the Bonds in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and surrender of the Bond or Bonds in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registra...

	Section 3.09. Replacement Bonds.
	(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not conte...
	(b) In the event that any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence of notice or knowledge that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fi...
	(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Bond;
	(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying Agent/Registrar to save it and the Town harmless;
	(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and
	(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar.

	(c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Bond, a bona fide purchaser of the original Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such original Bond, the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to rec...
	(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully taken Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, may pay such Bond wh...
	(e) Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds...

	Section 3.10. Book-Entry-Only System.
	(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, upon initial issuance of the Bond, the Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  The definitive Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate bond for ea...
	(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant hold...
	(c) The Representations Letter previously executed and delivered by the Town, and applicable to the Town’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Bonds.

	Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only System.
	Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co.

	ARTICLE IV   REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY
	Section 4.01. Limitation on Redemption.
	Section 4.02. Optional Redemption.
	(a) The Town reserves the option to redeem Bonds maturing on and after February 15, 2031 in whole or any part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on August 15, 2030 or on any date thereafter, such redemption date or dates to be fixed by...
	(b) If less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional redemption, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot the Bonds, o...
	(c) The Town, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of such redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed.

	Section 4.03. Reserved.
	Section 4.04. Partial Redemption.
	(a) A portion of a single Bond of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  If such a Bond is to be partially redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat ...
	(b) Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange Bond in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of t...
	(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the Town in writing of the principal amount to be redeemed of any Bond as to which only a portion thereof is to be redeemed.

	Section 4.05. Notice of Redemption to Owners.
	(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Bonds by sending notice by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Bond (or part thereof) t...
	(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at which the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Bonds outstanding are to be redeemed, an identification of the Bonds or portions thereof to...
	(c) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice.

	Section 4.06. Payment Upon Redemption.
	(a) Before or on each redemption date, the Town shall deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Bonds to be redeeme...
	(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Bond called for redemption at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of, redemption ...

	Section 4.07. Effect of Redemption.
	(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.05 of this Ordinance, the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption and, unless the Town defaults in its obligation...
	(b) If the Town shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a redemption date, then any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear interest at the rate stated on the Bond until due provision is made for the pa...

	Section 4.08. Conditional Notice of Redemption.
	Section 4.09. Lapse of Payment.

	ARTICLE V   PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR
	Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.
	Section 5.02. Qualifications.
	Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.
	(a) At all times while any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Town will maintain a Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance.  The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement with the Paying Agent...
	(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the Town will promptly appoint a replacement.

	Section 5.04. Termination.
	Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners.
	Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.
	Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor.

	ARTICLE VI   FORM OF THE BONDS
	Section 6.01. Form Generally.
	(a) The Bonds, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Bond of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Assignment form to appear on each of the Bonds, (i) shall be substantially in the form s...
	(b) Any portion of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse side thereof, with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bonds.
	(c) The definitive Bonds, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed, lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such ...
	(d) The Initial Bond submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.

	Section 6.02. Form of the Bonds.
	(a) Form of Bond.
	(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.  The following Comptroller’s Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive Bonds if such certificate on the Initial Bond is fully executed.
	(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar.  The following Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from each Initial Bond if the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate appears thereon.
	(d) Form of Assignment.
	(e) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in subsections (a) through (d) of this Section, except for the following alterations:
	(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings “INTEREST RATE,” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown Below” and the words “CUSIP NO.” shall be deleted;
	(ii) in the first paragraph of the Bond, the words “on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of ____________________ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and the following will be inserted: “on the fifteenth day of February in the years, in the principal in...
	(iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered T-1.


	Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration.
	Section 6.04. Legal Opinion.
	Section 6.05. Statement Insurance.

	ARTICLE VII   SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS;  DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS
	Section 7.01. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement.
	(a) The Bonds, having been duly advertised and offered for sale at competitive bid, are hereby officially sold and awarded to ______________ (the “Purchaser”) for a purchase price equal to the principal amount thereof, minus an original issue discount...
	(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted and is hereby deemed final as of its date within the meaning and for the purposes of par...
	(c) All officers of the Town are authorized to execute such documents, certificates and receipts as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Bonds in accordance with the terms of sale therefor.  Further, in connection with ...
	(d) The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds is subject to the Purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Bracewell LLP, bond counsel for the Town, which opinion shall be dated and delivered the Closing Date.

	Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds.
	(a) The Mayor of the Town is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination, and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registratio...
	(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Bonds shall be made to the Purchaser or a representative thereof under and subject to the general supervision and direction of the Mayor, against receipt by the Town of all ...
	(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents an...


	ARTICLE VIII   CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS
	Section 8.01. Creation of Funds.
	(a) The Town hereby establishes the following special funds or accounts:
	(i) The Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2021, Interest and Sinking Fund

	(b) This fund or account shall be maintained at an official depository of the Town.

	Section 8.02. Interest and Sinking Fund.
	(a) The taxes levied under Section 2.01 shall be deposited to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund at such times and in such amounts as necessary for the timely payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds.
	(b) If the amount of money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is at least equal to the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds plus the aggregate amount of interest due and that will become due and payable on such Bonds, no further deposits ...
	(c) Money on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be used to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as such become due and payable.

	Section 8.03. Security of Funds.
	Section 8.04. Deposit of Proceeds.
	(a) Proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of $_________________, shall be deposited to the Escrow Fund pursuant to the Escrow Agreement to refund the Refunded Bonds, and, to the extent not otherwise provided for, to pay all expenses arising in connectio...
	(b) The remaining proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited to a special fund, such moneys to be dedicated and used for paying the costs of issuance.  Any amounts remaining after the payment of the costs of issuance shall be deposited to the Interest a...

	Section 8.05. Investments.
	(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Ordinance, at the option of the Town, may be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law.
	(b) Any securities or obligations in which such money is so invested shall be kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the proceeds of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made fro...

	Section 8.06. Investment Income.
	(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund be credited to such fund.
	(b) Interest and income derived from investment of the funds to be deposited pursuant to Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the account where deposited until the acquisition or construction of said projects is completed and thereafter, to the...


	ARTICLE IX   PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS
	Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds.
	Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants.
	(a) The Town will faithfully perform, at all times, any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each Bond; the Town will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premium, if...
	(b) The Town is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the Bonds; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly and effectively taken; and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and wi...


	ARTICLE X   DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
	Section 10.01. Events of Default.
	(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on any of the Bonds when the same becomes due and payable; or
	(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, agreement, or obligation of the Town, which default materially and adversely affects the rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in ...

	Section 10.02. Remedies for Default.
	(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized representative thereof, including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed against the Town for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of...
	(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the equal benefit of all Owners of Bonds then outstanding.

	Section 10.03. Remedies Not Exclusive.
	(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds or now or hereaf...
	(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a waiver of any other available remedy.


	ARTICLE XI   DISCHARGE
	Section 11.01. Discharge.

	ARTICLE XII   CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING
	Section 12.01. Annual Reports.
	(a) The Town shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six months after the end of each fiscal year of the Town, financial information and operating data with respect to the Town of the general type included in the final Official Statement, being...
	(b) If the Town changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Town otherwise would be required to provide financial information and operating data pursua...
	(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific referenced to any document (including an official statement or other offering doc...

	Section 12.02. Material Event Notices.
	(a) The Town shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) Business Days after the occurrence of the event, of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:
	(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
	(ii) Non-payment related defaults, if material;
	(iii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
	(iv) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
	(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
	(vi) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the ...
	(vii) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material;
	(viii) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;
	(ix) Defeasances;
	(x) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;
	(xi) Rating changes;
	(xii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Town;
	(xiii) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Town or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Town, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake ...
	(xiv) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar or change in the name of the Paying Agent/Registrar, if material.
	(xv) incurrence of a financial obligation of the Town, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which affect security holders, if materia...
	(xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

	For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding clause (xii) is considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or similar officer for the Town in a proceeding under the United St...
	(b) The Town shall provide to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of a failure by the Town to provide required annual financial information and notices of material events in accordance with Sections ...

	Section 12.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.
	(a) The Town shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the Town remains an “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the To...
	(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any ot...
	(c) No default by the Town in observing or performing its obligations under this Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other provisions of this Ordinance.
	(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the duties of the Town under federal and state securities laws.
	(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Town from time to time to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of th...


	ARTICLE XIII   AMENDMENTS
	Section 13.01. Amendments.

	ARTICLE XIV   MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 14.01. Changes to Ordinance.
	Section 14.02. Partial Invalidity.
	Section 14.03. No Personal Liability.

	ARTICLE XV
	REDEMPTION OF REFUNDED BONDS; ESCROW AGREEMENT;  PURCHASE OF SECURITIES
	Section 15.01. Payment of Paying Agent.
	Section 15.02. Subscription for Securities.  The Mayor and Director of Finance are authorized to make necessary arrangements for and to execute such documents and agreements in connection with the purchase of the Authorized Securities required by and ...
	Section 15.03. Escrow Agreement.
	Section 15.04. Payment of Refunded Bonds; Redemption of Refunded Bonds.  Following the deposit to the Escrow Fund as herein specified, the Refunded Bonds shall be payable solely from and secured by the cash and securities on deposit in the Escrow Fund...

	ARTICLE XVI   EFFECTIVENESS
	Section 16.01. Effectiveness.

	SCHEDULE OF REFUNDED OBLIGATIONS
	General Obligation Bonds, Tax-Exempt Series 2013
	General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A (AMT)
	Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013


